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November 8, 2021 
 
To             
BSE Limited      
Department of Corporate Services  
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers    
Dalal Street, Fort,     
Mumbai- 400 001. 
  
Ref: BSE code: 516110    
 
Sub.: Submission of Annual Report under Regulation 34 of the SEBI (LODR) 

Regulations, 2015. 
 
Dear Sir/Madam, 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, please find enclosed 
copy of the Notice of the 27th AGM and the Annual Report for the financial year 
20120-21 including the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 
2021 (“Annual Report”), being sent by email to those members whose email 
addresses are registered with the Company/Depository Participant(s).  
 
The requirements of sending physical copy of the Notice of the AGM and Annual 
Report to the members have been dispensed with vide MCA Circular(s) and SEBI 
Circular. The Notice of the 27th AGM and the Annual Report are also being 
uploaded on the website of the Company at www.scandent.in. 
 
This is for your information and records please.  
 
Thanking you, 
 
Yours faithfully, 
 
For Scandent Imaging Limited 
 
Sd/- 
Sheetal Musale 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
Encl.: a/a. 
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CORPORATE INFORMATION 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Mr. Pandoo Naig  Managing Director 

Dr. Rajnish Kumar Pandey    Non Executive Independent Director 

Mr. Dhananjay Parikh  Non Executive Independent Director  

Dr. Vaishali Sood  Additional Non Executive Independent Director  

Dr. Rajeev Singh   Additional Non Executive Non Independent Director 
 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Dr. Rajnish Kumar Pandey             Chairman 

Dr. Vaishali Sood  Member  

Mr. Dhananjay Parikh  Member 
 

 

STAKEHOLDER RELATIONS COMMITTEE 

Dr. Rajnish Kumar Pandey           Chairman 

Dr. Vaishali Sood  Member  

Mr. Dhananjay Parikh  Member 
 

 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

Dr. Vaishali Sood  Chairperson 

Dr. Rajnish Kumar Pandey           Member 

Dr. Rajeev Singh  Member 
 
 

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

Mr. Pandoo Naig   Chairman 

Dr. Rajnish Kumar Pandey  Member 

Dr. Rajeev Singh   Member 
 

1.  Dr. Gautam Deshpande retired from the Board as Managing Director with effect from close of business hours on 

January 31, 2021. 

2.  The  Board  of  Directors  approved  the  appointment of  Mr. Pandoo Naig  as a Managing Director for  a term of  

five years, with effect from April 26, 2021, subject to approval of  shareholders of the Company. 

3. The Board of Directors approved the appointment of Dr. Vaishali Sood as an Independent Director for a term of 

five years, with effect from April 26, 2021, subject to approval of shareholders of the Company.  

4.  Dr. Sowmya Deshpande resigned from the position of Whole Time Director w.e.f. close of business hours on April 

26, 2021. 

5.  Dr. Gaurav Goyal resigned from the position of Independent Director w.e.f. close of business hours on May 10, 

2021. 

6.  The Board of Directors approved the appointment of Dr. Rahul Sathe and Dr. Rajeev Singh as an Non Executive 

Non Independent Directors of the Company, with effect from June 29, 2021, subject to approval of shareholders of 

the Company.  

7. Dr. Rahul Sathe resigned from the position of Non Executive Non Independent Director w.e.f. close of business 

hours on September 15, 2021. 

 

* The re-constitution of committee are mentioned in the point 11 of the Corporate Governance report of Annual 

Report. 
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BANKERS 

Indian Bank 

HDFC Bank Limited 

 

STATUTORY AUDITORS      INTERNAL AUDITORS          SECRETARIAL AUDITOR 

M/s. M. B. Agrawal & Co.      G. S. Toshniwal & Associates     M/s. Ajay Kumar & Co. 

Chartered Accountants            Chartered Accountants           Practising Company Secretary 

 

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER      CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER  COMPANY SECRETARY 

Dr. Gautam Deshpande        Mr. Amit Tyagi         Ms. Sheetal Musale                                 

  

 

 

REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENTS 

Purva Sharegistry (India) Private Limited 

Unit no. 9, Shiv Shakti Ind. Estt., J. R. Boricha Marg, Opp. Kasturba Hospital Lane, 

Lower Parel (E), Mumbai 400011. 

http://www.purvashare.com/ 

Tel: 91-22-2301 6761/8261 Fax: 91-22-2301 2517 Email: support@purvashare.com 

 

 

 

 

REGISTERED OFFICE 

SCANDENT IMAGING LIMITED 

CIN:  L93000MH1994PLC080842 
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Web site: www.scandent.in Email id: cs@scandent.in Tel No.: 022-25833205 
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National Securities Depository Limited (Designated Depository) 
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 27TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE 

MEMBERS OF SCANDENT IMAGING LIMITED (CIN : L93000MH1994PLC080842) WILL BE 

HELD ON TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 30, 2021 AT 03.00 P.M. IST THROUGH VIDEO 

CONFERENCING (“VC”) / OTHER AUDIO VISUAL MEANS (“OAVM”) TO TRANSACT THE 

FOLLOWING BUSINESS: 
 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the 

financial year ended March 31, 2021 together with Report of the Board of Directors and 

Auditors thereon for the financial year ended March 31, 2021. 
 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Pandoo Naig (DIN 00158221), who retires by 

rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. 
 

3. To appoint Auditor and to fix their remuneration and in this regard, pass the following 

resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 
 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139, 142 and other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder (including 

any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), and 

pursuant to the recommendations of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors, 

M/s. S. M. Gupta and Co, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. FRN: 310015E), be 

and are hereby appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for a 

period of five years, from the conclusion of the 27th Annual General Meeting held in the 

year 2021 till the conclusion of the 32rd Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 

2026, in place of M/s. M. B. Agrawal & Co., (Firm Registration Number 100137W) whose 

tenure expires at the 27th Annual General Meeting, at such remuneration plus 

reimbursement of actual out of pocket expenses, as may be incurred by them in 

connection with the audit of accounts of the Company, as may be mutually agreed 

between the Board of Directors of the Company and the said Auditors. 

 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 
 

4. Appointment of Mr. Pandoo Naig (DIN: 00158221) as a Managing Director of the 

Company. 
 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 

resolutions as Ordinary Resolution: 
 
 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provision sections 196, 197, 198 and 203 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, read with applicable rules made there under (including any 

statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), and 

Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and the provisions of Articles of Association of 

the Company and as recommended by Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the 

Board, consent of the members of the Company be and are hereby accorded to appoint 

Mr. Pandoo Naig (DIN- 00158221) as Managing Director of the Company, whose office is 
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liable to be retire by rotation, for a period of 5 years with effect from April 26, 2021 on 

NIL Remuneration and such other terms and conditions as decided between Company 

and Director.  

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company and / or Company 

Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, 

matters and things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect 

to this resolution.”  
 

5. Appointment of Dr. Vaishali Sood (DIN: 09110633) as a Non - Executive Independent 

Director of the Company. 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 

resolutions as Ordinary Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the Companies  Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), read with Schedule IV of the 

Act, (including any statutory amendment(s), modification(s), enactment(s) or re-

enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) and the Companies (Appointment and 

Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended, and pursuant to the 

recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the approval of the 

Board of Directors vide their resolution dated April 26, 2021, Dr. Vaishali Sood (DIN: 

09110633), who has submitted a declaration that she meets the criteria of Independence 

as provided under Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1) (b) of the Securities 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 and who is eligible for appointment, and in respect of whom, the Company has 

received a notice in writing from a member under Section 160 of the Act, proposing him 

candidature for the office of the Director of the Company, be and is hereby appointed as 

a Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company to hold office for a term of five 

consecutive years with effect from April 26, 2021 till the conclusion of the Annual 

General Meeting to be held in the year 2025-2026. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 197, and other 

applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act 2013, read with applicable rules 

made there under (including any statutory amendment(s), modification(s), enactment(s) 

or reenactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), Dr. Vaishali Sood (DIN: 

09110633), be paid such fees and remuneration and the profit – related Commission as 

the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and / or the Board of Directors may 

approve from time to time which shall however be subject to the limits prescribed in the 

Act; 
 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, the Board of Directors or the Company Secretary of the 

Company be and are hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as 

may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”  
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6. Appointment of Dr. Rajeev Singh (DIN: 09235266) as a Non-Executive Non-

Independent Director of the Company. 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 

resolutions as Ordinary Resolution: 
 

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and all other 

applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and rules made 

there under (including any statutory amendment(s), modification(s), enactment(s) or re-

enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) and Articles of Association of the 

Company,  Dr. Rajeev Singh  (DIN: 09235266), who was appointed by Board of Directors 

as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from June 29, 2021, pursuant to 

provisions of Section 161 of the Act and who hold office up to the date of this Annual 

General Meeting and in respect of whom the Company has received an notice in writing  

under Section 160 of the Act, from a member proposing his candidature for the office of 

Director and in accordance with the recommendation of the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company, 

liable to retire by rotation.” 
 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, the Board of Directors or the Company Secretary of the 

Company be and are hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as 

may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”  
 

                       For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

                       

Sd/- 

Scandent Imaging Limited 

Pandoo Naig 

   Managing Director 

DIN: 00158221 

Email: cs@scandent.in  

Tele Ph: 022-25833205         

Regd. Off:                                                                       

A-357, Road No. 26,                                                                              

Wagle Industrial Estate, MIDC,                                  

Thane (West), Thane- 400604                                                

CIN: L93000MH1994PLC080842                                                                                             

Email: cs@scandent.in 

Website: www.scandent.in 

Tele Ph: 022-25833205 

 

Date: November 8, 2021 

Place: Thane    
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NOTES 
 

1. As you are aware, in view of the situation arising due to COVID-19 global pandemic, the 

general meetings of the companies shall be conducted as per the guidelines issued by 

the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, 

Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020. 

General Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021 and SEBI Circular No. 

SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 for evoting facility. The 

forthcoming AGM will thus be held through video conferencing (VC) or other audio 

visual means (OAVM). Hence, Members can attend and participate in the ensuing AGM 

through VC/OAVM. 
 

2. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 

of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and 

Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 

(as amended), and MCA Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 

the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the 

business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an 

agreement with Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting 

through electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting’s agency. The facility of casting 

votes by a member using remote e-voting as well as the e-voting system on the date of 

the AGM will be provided by CDSL. 
 

3. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the 

scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure 

mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will 

be made available to atleast 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not 

include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, 

Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the 

Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders 

Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without 

restriction on account of first come first served basis. 
 

4. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted 

for the purpose of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 

2013. 
 

5. Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint proxy 

to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM. However, in 

pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, representatives 

of the members such as the President of India or the Governor of a State or body 

corporate can attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and cast their votes through e-voting. 
 

6. Institutional/Corporate Shareholders are required to send a scanned copy of its Board or 

governing body Resolution/ Authorization etc., authorizing its representative to attend 

the AGM through VC/OAVM on its behalf and to vote through e-Voting/remote e-Voting. 
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The said Resolution/Authorization shall be sent to Scrutinizer by email at    

siroyam@gmail.com and to CDSL by email at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com with a 

copy marked to cs@scandent.in. 

 

7. Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the statement pursuant 

to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 shall be available for inspection through 

electronic mode, basis the request being sent on cs@scandent.in. 
 

8. In compliance with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated January 15, 2021, Notice 

of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2020-21 is being sent only through electronic 

mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the 

Company/Depositories and no physical copy of the same would be dispatched. Members 

may note that the Notice and Annual Report 2020-21 will also be available on the 

Company’s website www.scandent.in, websites of the Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Limited  at 

www.bseindia.com and on the website of CDSL at www.evotingindia.com. 
 

9. The AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 

8, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 

20/2020 dated May 05, 2020. 

 

THE INTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDRES FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER: 

 

(i) The voting period begins on Saturday 27th November, 2021 (09.00 A.M. IST) and ends 

on Monday, 29th November 2021 (05.00 P.M. IST). . During this period shareholders’ 
of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as 

on the cut-off date Tuesday, 23th November, 2021 may cast their vote electronically. 

The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. 
 

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled 

to vote at the meeting venue. 
 

(iii) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com. 
 

(iv) Click on “Shareholders” module. 
 

(v) Now enter your User ID  

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,  

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,  

c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number 

registered with the Company. 

OR 

Alternatively, if you are registered for CDSL’s EASI/EASIEST e-services, you can log-in 

at https://www.cdslindia.com from Login - Myeasi using your login credentials. 

Once you successfully log-in to CDSL’s EASI/EASIEST e-services, click on e-Voting 

option and proceed directly to cast your vote electronically. 

mailto:cs@scandent.in
mailto:cs@scandent.in
http://www.evotingindia.com/
https://www.cdslindia.com/
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(vi) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 

 

(vii) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com 

and voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be 

used.  
 

(viii) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below: 

 For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form 

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax 

Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as 

physical shareholders) 

 Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the 

Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the 

sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact 

Company/RTA. 

Dividend 

Bank Details 

OR Date of 

Birth (DOB) 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy 

format) as recorded in your demat account or in the company 

records in order to login. 

 If both the details are not recorded with the depository or 

company please enter the member id / folio number in the 

Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in instruction (v). 
 

(ix) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 
 

(x) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company 

selection screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach 

‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login 

password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also 

used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which 

they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL 

platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other 

person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential. 
 

(xi) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-

voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice. 
 

(xii) Click on the EVSN for the relevant Scandent Imaging Limited on which you choose to 

vote. 
 

(xiii) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same 

the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option 

YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent 

to the Resolution. 

 

http://www.evotingindia.com/
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(xiv) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution 

details. 

 
 

(xv) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A 

confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, 
else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote. 

 

(xvi) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify 

your vote. 

 

(xvii) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option 

on the Voting page. 

 

(xviii) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID 

and the image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as 

prompted by the system. 

 

(xix) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app “m-Voting”. The m-

Voting app can be downloaded from respective Store. Please follow the instructions 

as prompted by the mobile app while Remote Voting on your mobile.  

 

  



 

                                                                             

27th Annual Report 2020-21 Page 14 

 

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL ADDRESSES ARE NOT REGISTERED 

WITH THE DEPOSITORIES FOR OBTAINING LOGIN CREDENTIALS FOR E-VOTING FOR 

THE RESOLUTIONS PROPOSED IN THIS NOTICE:  

 

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of 

shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested 

scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by 

email to Company/RTA email id. 

 

2. For Demat shareholders - please provide Demat account details (CDSL-16 digit 

beneficiary ID or NSDL-16 digit DPID + CLID), Name, client master or copy of 

Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), 

AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to Company/RTA email id.  

 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE 

AS UNDER: 
 

1. Shareholder will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM 

through the CDSL e-voting system. Shareholders may access the same at 

https://www.evotingindia.com under shareholders/members login by using the 

remote e-voting credentials. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in 

shareholder/members login where the EVSN of Company will be displayed. 
 

2. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better 

experience. 
 

3. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good 

speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting. 
 

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through 

Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to 

Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-

Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 
 

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting 

may register themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance atleast 7 

days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, 

email id, mobile number at (company email id). The shareholders who do not wish to 

speak during the AGM but have queries may send their queries in advance 7 days 

prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email 

id, mobile number at (Company email id). These queries will be replied to by the 

company suitably by email. 

  

6. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed 

to express their views/ask questions during the meeting. 
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING DURING THE AGM/EGM ARE AS 

UNDER:- 

 

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions 

mentioned above for Remote e-voting. 

 

2. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility 

and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and 

are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting 

system available during the AGM. 

 

3. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the 

AGM and if the same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through 

VC/OAVM facility , then the votes cast by such shareholders shall be considered 

invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the 

shareholders attending the meeting. 

 

4. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend 

the AGM. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 

 

 

(xx) Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians 

 

 Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and 

Custodians are required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register 

themselves in the “Corporates” module. 

 A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity 

should be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

 After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the 

admin login and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the 

account(s) for which they wish to vote on. 

 The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the accounts they would be 

able to cast their vote.  

 A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they 

have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format 

in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

 Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board 

Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the 

duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to 

the Company at the email address viz; cs@scandent.in, if they have voted from 

individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the 

scrutinizer to verify the same. 

 

http://www.evotingindia.com/
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:cs@scandent.in
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If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the e-

Voting System, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting 

manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section or write an email to 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact Mr. Nitin Kunder (022-23058738) or    

Mr. Mehboob Lakhani (022-23058543) or Mr. Rakesh Dalvi (022-23058542). 

 

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be 

addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Manager, (CDSL) Central Depository Services (India) 

Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi 

Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call  on 022-23058542/43. 

 

               

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

http://www.evotingindia.com/
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT (Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013) 
 

The following Explanatory Statement sets out all material facts relating to the Special 

Business mentioned in the Notice convening the 27th AGM to be held on Tuesday, 

November 30, 2021: 

 

 

Item No 4. 
 

Dr. Gautam Deshpande was appointed as the Managing Director of the Company for a 

period of five years with effect from February 1, 2016 to January 31, 2021 after 

obtaining due approval of the members of the Company in their 22nd Annual General 

Meeting held on September 30, 2016. Accordingly, term of Dr. Gautam Deshpande 

expired on January 31, 2021. 

 

The Board, in its meeting held on April 26, 2021 has appointed Mr. Pandoo Naig as the 

Managing Director of the Company without remuneration for the period of 5 Years from 

April 26, 2021. The Board has taken the decision of said appointment based on the 

recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and subject to the 

approval of the members of the Company. 

 

Mr. Pandoo Naig is not disqualified from being appointed as a Managing Director in 

terms of Section 164 of the Act and has given his consent to act as Managing Director. A 

brief profile of Mr. Pandoo Naig and other requisite details, pursuant to the provisions 

of the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (“SS-2”), issued by the Institute of 

Company Secretaries of India are annexed to this statement. A Copy of draft letter of 

appointment of Mr. Pandoo Naig setting out the terms and conditions of appointment is 

available for inspection by the members at the registered office of the Company.  

 

Except Mr. Pandoo Naig (the appointee), none of the other Directors or Key Managerial 

Personnel of the Company or their relatives are concerned or interested in this 

resolution. 

 

 

Item No 5. 
 

Based on the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the 

Board of Directors of the Company had appointed Dr. Vaishali Sood (DIN: 09110633) as 

an Additional Independent Director of the Company pursuant to the provisions of 

Section 149, 161(1) of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company with 

effect from April 26, 2021 for a period of five years effective from this Annual General 

Meeting not liable to retire by rotation.  
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In accordance with the provisions of Section 149 read with Schedule IV to the Act, 

appointment of an Independent Director requires approval of members. Dr. Vaishali 

Sood is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of 

the Act and has given her consent to act as a Director.  

 

The Company has received a declaration from Dr. Vaishali Sood that she meets the 

criteria of independence as prescribed under sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Act. In 

the opinion of the Board, Dr. Vaishali Sood fulfills the conditions for her appointment as 

an Independent Director as specified in the Act. The Company has received a notice in 

writing from a member along with the deposit of requisite amount under Section 160 of 

the Act proposing the candidature of Dr. Vaishali Sood for the office of Director of the 

Company. A brief profile of Dr. Vaishali Sood and other requisite details, pursuant to 

the provisions of the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (“SS-2”), issued by the 

Institute of Company Secretaries of India are annexed to this statement. A Copy of draft 

letter of appointment of Dr. Vaishali Sood setting out the terms and conditions of 

appointment is available for inspection by the members at the registered office of the 

Company.  
 

Except Dr. Vaishali Sood (the appointee), none of the other Directors or Key Managerial 

Personnel of the Company or their relatives are concerned or interested in this 

resolution 

 

 

Item No 6. 
 

Dr. Rajeev Singh was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company by the Board 

on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, with effect 

from June 29, 2021, in accordance with the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 (the "Act"). Pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 of the Act, Dr. Rajeev 

Singh holds office upto the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. As required 

under Section 160 of the Act, the Company has received notice in writing from a 

member proposing his candidature for office of Director of the Company, liable to retire 

by rotation.  

 

Dr. Rajeev Singh is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of 

Section 164 of the Act and has given his consent to act as Director. A brief profile of Dr. 

Rajeev Singh and other requisite details, pursuant to the provisions of the Secretarial 

Standard on General Meetings (“SS-2”), issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of 

India are annexed to this statement. A Copy of draft letter of appointment of Dr. Rajeev 

Singh setting out the terms and conditions of appointment is available for inspection by 

the members at the registered office of the Company.  
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Except Dr. Rajeev Singh (the appointee), none of the other Directors or Key Managerial 

Personnel of the Company or their relatives are concerned or interested in this 

resolution. 

 

       

                       For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

                       

Sd/- 

Scandent Imaging Limited 

Pandoo Naig 

   Managing Director 

DIN: 00158221  

Email: cs@scandent.in  

Tele Ph: 022-25833205              

Regd. Off:                                                                       

A-357, Road No. 26,                                                                              

Wagle Industrial Estate, MIDC,                                  

Thane (West), Thane- 400604.                                                

CIN: L93000MH1994PLC080842                                                                                             

Email: cs@scandent.in 

Website: www.scandent.in 

Tele Ph: 022-25833205 
 

Date: November 8, 2021  

Place: Thane    
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Annexure: A 

 

Details of the Directors seeking Appointment/Re-appointment at the Annual General 

Meeting Scheduled to be held on Tuesday, November 30, 2021 (Pursuant to Regulation 

36(3) of Securities And Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations And Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015: 

 

Name of the Directors Mr. Pandoo Naig 

DIN: 00158221 

Dr. Vaishali Sood 

DIN: 09110633 

Dr. Rajeev Singh 

DIN: 09235266 

Date of Birth 

Age 

15/04/1981 

40 Years 

26/11/1977 

44 Years 

07/05/1975 

46 Years 

Date of Appointment April 26, 2021 April 26, 2021 June 29, 2021 

Relationship  with the 

Directors and Key 

Managerial  Personnel 

Nil 

 

Nil Nil 

Expertise in specific  

Functional Area 

Experience in Capital 

Market and Investment 

Banking 

Dr. Vaishali Sood has 

completed her BDS from 

Christian Dental College 

Ludhiana, Punjab. She is 

having own dental clinic 

in Delhi 

Dr. Rajeev Singh has 

completed his BDS and MDS. 

He is a Professor of 

Prosthodontist and 

Implantologist. 

He is having 20 years of 

experience in the field of 

teaching and clinical. 

Qualification HSC BDS BDS 

Board Membership of 

other Listed Companies as 

on  31st  March, 2021 

1 (Onelife Capital 

Advisors Limited) 

Nil Nil 

Chairman /Member of the Committee of the 

Board of Directors of other Listed Companies 

(including this Company) as on  March 31, 2021 

  

a) Audit Committee 

 

 

1 1 Nil 

b) Nomination And 

Remuneration Committee 

Nil 1 1 

c) Stakeholder’s Relationship 

Committee 

  1 1 Nil 

d) Risk Management 

Committee 

2 Nil 1 

Number of shares held in 

Company as on    

March 31, 2021           

Nil Nil Nil 
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Note:  

 

1. Detailed profile of the above Directors is given as part of the Annual Report. The 

Directorship, Committee membership and Chairmanship do not include positions in 

Foreign Companies, Unlisted Companies and Private Companies, and position in 

Companies under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013. The information pertaining 

to remuneration paid to the Directors who are being appointed /re-appointed and 

number of Board Meeting attended during the year 2020-21 are provided in the 

Corporate Governance Report. 

 

2. In term of the Provision of Section 152(6) of the Act, Mr. Pandoo Naig, retire by 

rotation at the meeting. The Board of Directors recommends his reappointment. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

                                                                             

27th Annual Report 2020-21 Page 22 

 

BOARD’S REPORT 

 

Dear Members, 

 

The Board of Directors are pleased to present the 27th Annual Report of the Company along 

with the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2021. 

 

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS AND HIGHLIGHTS: 

 

The Financial performance of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2021 is 

summarized below: 

                                                                                 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 

Revenue from Operations 3535.50 1324.60 

Other Income 1.77 1.65 

Total 3537.27 1326.25 

Expenditure   

Purchase of stock in trade 372.87 82.46 

Change in inventory (1.08) (10.54) 

Employee Benefit Expenses 346.05 272.73 

Depreciation 141.60 127.63 

Other Expenses 2034.16 767.25 

Finance Costs 78.47 82.87 

Total 2972.07 1322.40 

Profit / (Loss) before exceptional and 

extraordinary items and tax 

565.20 3.85 

Exceptional items - Discount on Issue of 

Equity Shares 

---------  ---------- 

extraordinary items ----------- ------------ 

Profit / (Loss) from ordinary activities before 

tax 

565.20 3.85 

Tax Expense   

1. Current Year Tax 157.79 1.00 

2. Short provisions for tax of earlier years  - 

3. Deferred tax  - 

Profit/ (Loss) after Tax 407.41 2.85 

Total Other Comprehensive income for the 

year 

(1.43) 0.94 

Total Comprehensive income / (loss) for the 

year 

405.98 3.79 

Basic and Diluted EPS 1.27 0.01 
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2. Indian Accounting Standard: 

The Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2021, forming part of 

this Annual Report, have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS.  

 

The reconciliations and descriptions of the effect of the transition from Previous GAAP 

to Ind AS have been provided in the Notes to Accounts to the Financial Statements. 

 

3. COMPANY’S PERFORMANCE:  

 

Your Company achieved a total income of Rs. 3537.27 Lakhs during the current year as 

against Rs. 1326.25 Lakhs in the corresponding financial year ended March 31, 2020. 

EBITDA for the year stood at Rs. 565.20 Lakhs compared to Rs. 3.85 Lakhs for the 

previous corresponding year.  Profit/(Loss) for the year stood at Rs. 407.41 Lakhs in the 

current financial year compared to Rs. 2.85 Lakhs in the previous year.  

 

There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company during the year 

under review. Performance of the Company has also been discussed in detail in the 

‘Management Discussion and Analysis Report’ forming part of this Annual Report. 

 

4. DIVIDEND: 

 

To strengthen the long term prospectus and sustainable growth in assets and revenue, 

it is important for the Company to evaluate various opportunities in the different 

business vertical in which Company operates. The Board of Directors considers this to 

be in the strategic interest of the Company and believe that this will greatly enhance 

the long term shareholder value. The Company expects better results for the coming 

year. In order to fund this development and implementation projects, conservation of 

fund is of vital importance. Therefore, your Directors have not recommended any 

dividend for the financial year 2020-2021. 

 

5. TRANSFER TO RESERVES: 

 

No amount is proposed to be transferred to the General Reserves of the Company out 

of the profits for the year.  

 

6. SUBSIDIARY: 

 

During the year under review the Company does not have any Subsidiary Company. 

 

7. CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL, IF ANY: 

 

During the year, under Review, there is no change in the Share Capital of the Company. 
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8. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 
 

During the year under review, all the Independent Directors have furnished Declaration 

of Independence stating that they meet the criteria of independence as provided under 

Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and Regulation 16 of the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Listing Regulations’) and there has been no 

change in the circumstances which may affect their status as Independent Directors 

during the year. 
 

 Dr. Gautam Deshpande retired from the Board as Managing Director with effect 

from close of business hours on January 31, 2021. 

 Dr. Sowmya Deshpande resigned from the position of Whole Time Director w.e.f. 

close of business hours on April 26, 2021. Dr. Sowmya Deshpande had vide their 

letter dated April 26, 2021, informed the Company of their inability to render 

their services as Whole Time Director of the Company. 

 Mr. Pandoo Naig (DIN: 00158221), has been appointed as a Managing Director on 

the Board of the Company effective April 26, 2021 subject to approval of 

shareholders of the Company. 

 Dr. Gaurav Goyal resigned from the post of Independent Director from the Board 

of the Company with effect from May 10, 2021. Dr. Gaurav Goyal had vide their 

letter dated May 10, 2021 informed the Company of their inability to render their 

services as Independent Director of the Company due to non availability of time. 

They further confirmed that there are no material reasons other than the above 

mentioned reason for his resignation.  

 Dr. Rahul Sathe (DIN: 09235493) and Dr. Rajeev Singh (DIN: 09235266) Non 

Executive Non Independent Directors have been appointed as an Additional 

Directors on the Board of the Company effective June 29, 2021. 

 Dr. Rahul Sathe resigned from the position of Non Executive Non Independent 

Director w.e.f. close of business hours on September 15, 2021. Dr. Rahul Sathe 

had vide their letter dated September 13, 2021, informed the Company of their 

inability to render their services as Non Executive Non Independent Director of 

the Company. 
 

In accordance with the provision of Section 178 and other applicable provisions of the 

Act and SEBI Listing Regulations, if any, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

has considered and recommended the above appointments/re-appointments to the 

Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company. A brief resume and 

other details of all the Directors seeking appointment/ re-appointment are provided in 

the Notice of AGM. 
 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Act, Mr. Pandoo Naig, Managing 

Director retires by rotation as Director at the ensuing AGM and being eligible, offers 

himself for re-appointment. The Board recommends his re-appointment. 
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In accordance with the provisions of Section 2(51) and 203 of the Act read with the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,   

Mr. Pandoo Naig, Managing Director, Dr. Gautam Deshpande, Chief Executive Officer, 

Mr. Amit Tyagi, Chief Financial Officer and Ms. Sheetal Musale, Company Secretary & 

Compliance Officer are the Key Managerial Personnel (‘KMP’) of your Company. 

 

9. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD: 

 

The Company’s Board has the following committees; 

1. Audit Committee 

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

3. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee 

4. Risk Management Committee 
 

Details of terms of reference of the Committees, Committee membership and 

attendance at meetings of the Committees are provided in the Corporate Governance 

report. 

 

10. PUBLIC DEPOSITS: 

 

During the financial year 2020-21, your Company has not accepted any deposit within 

the meaning of Sections 73 and 74 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with the 

Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. 

 
11. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, INVESTMENTS AND GUARANTEES UNDER SECTION 186 

OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 

 

The particulars of loans given and investments made during the financial year under 

Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are given at Notes forming part of the 

Financial Statements. During the financial year, the Company has neither provided any 

securities nor provided corporate guarantees for loans availed by the others. 

 
12. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS: 

 

There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators/Courts/Tribunal 

which would impact the going concern status of the Company and its operations in 

future. 

 

13. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR): 
 

The said provisions are not applicable to the Company for the financial year 2020-21.  

However, The Company has earned net profit of Rs. 5.65 Crore in the financial year 

2020-21 and hence the provision would be applicable form the financial year 2021-22. 

The Company shall comply with the provision of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 

2013. 
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14. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN: 
 

As per the provisions of Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, Annual 

Return for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2021, in prescribed Form No. MGT-7 

is available on the website of the Company on 

http://www.scandent.in/Annual_Return/Annual%20Return%20FY%202020-21.pdf 

 

15. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED 

PARTIES: 
 

All related party transactions that were entered into by the Company during the 

financial year were in ordinary course of business and at arm’s length basis. Also, 

there were no related party transactions which could be considered material in 

accordance with the Policy of the Company on materiality of related party 

transactions. 
 

All related party transactions are being reviewed and placed before the Audit 

Committee from time to time for their approval and also been taken on record by the 

Board. 
 

Policy on dealing with related party transactions, is available on the Company’s website 

at http://www.scandent.in/related-party-policy.pdf 

 

16. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 

REPORT: 

 

A Report on Corporate Governance along with a Certificate from Practicing Company 

Secretary confirming the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance and 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of this Annual Report. 

 

17. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION 

BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND DATE OF REPORT: 

 

There are no material changes and commitments between the end of the financial year 

of the Company and as on the date of this report which can affect the financial 

position of the Company. 
 

18. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD:  
 

There were Four (4) meetings of the Board held during the year. Detailed information is 

given in the Corporate Governance Report.  
 

19. RETIREMENT BY ROTATION:  
 

Mr. Pandoo Naig, Managing Director, retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General 

Meeting, and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. 

 

http://www.scandent.in/Annual_Return/Annual%20Return%20FY%202020-21.pdf
http://www.scandent.in/related-party-policy.pdf
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20. DISCLOSURE RELATING TO REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL 

PERSONNEL AND PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES: 
 

Your Company has been following well laid down policy on appointment and 

remuneration of Directors, KMP and Senior Management Personnel. 

 

The appointment of Directors is made pursuant to the recommendation of Nomination 

and Remuneration Committee (‘NRC’). Approval of shareholders for payment of 

remuneration to Wholetime Directors is sought, from time to time. 
 

The remuneration of Non-Executive Directors comprises of sitting fees in accordance 

with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 incurred in connection with attending the 

Board meetings, Committee meetings, General meetings and in relation to the business 

of the Company. During the year under review, the Company has not paid any 

commission to the Non-Executive Directors. 
 

A brief of the Remuneration Policy on appointment and remuneration of Directors, 

KMP and Senior Management is provided in the Report on Corporate Governance 

forming part of this Annual Report. Further, the Policy is available on the website of 

the Company and the weblink thereto is 

http://www.scandent.in/nominationpolicy.pdf 

 

NRC have also formulated criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes 

and independence of a director and the same have been provided in the Report on 

Corporate Governance forming part of this Annual Report. 
 

 

The information required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

Companies Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in 

respect of Directors/ employees of your Company is set out in “Annexure 2” to this 

Report. 

 

21. DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE: 
 

The Company has received necessary declaration from each Independent Director 

under Section 149 (7) of the Act that he / she meets the criteria of independence laid 

down in Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16 of SEBI Listing Regulations.  

 

22. BOARD EVALUATION: 
 

One of the key functions of the Board is to monitor and review the Board evaluation 

framework. The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own 

performance, Committees and Individual Directors pursuant to provision of the Act 

and the Corporate Governance requirement as prescribed by SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulation, 2015”). 
 

http://www.scandent.in/nominationpolicy.pdf


 

                                                                             

27th Annual Report 2020-21 Page 28 

 

The performance of the Board was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from all 

the directors on the basis of the criteria such as the Board composition, structure of 

the board process, information and functioning, etc. 
 

The Board also carried annual performance evaluation of the working of its Audit, 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Risk Management Committee as well as 

Stakeholder Relationship Committee. The Board and the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of the individual Directors. 
 

In a separate meeting of the Independent Director, performance of non –independent 

Director, performance of Board and performance of the chairman was evaluated, 

taking in to account the view of Executive Director and Non Executive Director. 

Performance evaluation of Independent Director was done by the entire Board, 

excluding the Independent Director being evaluated. 

 

         Separate Meeting of the Independent Directors 
 

The Independent Directors held a Meeting on February 12, 2021, without the 

attendance of Non-Independent Directors and Members of Management. All the 

Independent Directors were present at such meeting and at the Meeting they have: 

 

i. Reviewed the performance of non-independent directors and the Board as a 

whole; 

ii. Assessed the quality, quantity and timelines of flow of information between the 

Company Management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to 

effectively and reasonably perform their duties. 
 

The Present Independent Directors holds a unanimous opinion that the Non-

Independent Directors bring to the Board constructive knowledge in their respective 

field. All the Directors effectively participate and interact in the Meeting. The 

information flow between the Company's Management and the Board is satisfactory. 

 

Training of Independent Directors 

 

The Company shall provide regular training to independent directors to update them 

with the regulatory changes and their roles and responsibility in view thereof. 

 

23. STATUTORY AUDITORS: 

 

M/s. M. B. Agrawal & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 100137W), was 
appointed as Statutory Auditors of your Company at the Annual General Meeting 
(“AGM”) held on September 27, 2017 for a term of four consecutive years until the 
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held for the financial 
year 2020-21 and hence the term of M/s. M. B. Agrawal & Co., expires this AGM. 
Statutory Auditors of the Company has completed ten years as Statutory Auditors of 
your Company. 
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M/s. M. B. Agrawal & Co. has completed two terms as Statutory Auditors of your 
Company. Considering the requirements of Section 139(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, they shall cease to hold 
office from the conclusion of ensuing Annual General Meeting.  

 
The Board places on record its sincere appreciation for the services rendered by       
M/s. M. B. Agrawal & Co. during their tenure as Statutory Auditors of the Company. The 
Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on November 8, 2021, based 
on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, recommended appointment of M/s. S. 
M. Gupta and Co, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 310015E) as the 
Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of this 27th 
Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 32nd Annual General Meeting of the 
Company, subject to compliance of the various provisions of Companies Act, 2013.  
 
M/s. S. M. Gupta and Co. has expressed its willingness to be appointed as the Statutory 
Auditors of the Company and also confirmed its eligibility in compliance with the 
provisions of Section 139, 141 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013.  

 

 

Auditors’ Report 

 
Statutory Auditor's comments on your Company’s accounts for year ended March 31, 
2021 are self explanatory in nature and do not require any explanation as per 
provisions of Section 134(3)(f) of the Companies Act, 2013. There were no 
qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks or disclaimers in the report of statutory 
auditors of the Company. 
 
 

24. SECRETARIAL AUDITORS: 

 

M/s. Ajay Kumar & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries was appointed to conduct the 

Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2020-21, as required under 

Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule made thereunder. The detailed 

report on the Secretarial Audit is appended as an “Annexure 3” to this Report. The 

Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse 

remarks. 
 

 

25. COST AUDITORS: 
 

Maintenance of cost records and requirement of cost audit as prescribed under the 

provisions of Section 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the 

Company for the FY 2020-21. 

 

There were no qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks or disclaimers in the 

report of statutory auditors of the Company. 
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26. INTERNAL CONTROL: 
 

The Board ensures the effectiveness of the Company’s system of internal controls 

including financial, operational and compliance control and risk management controls 

and same is subject to review periodically by the Board of Directors and M/s. G. S. 

Toshniwal & Associates, Chartered accountants, Internal Auditors of the Company for 

its effectiveness. The control measures adopted by the Company have been found to 

be effective and adequate to the Company’s requirement. 

 

27. PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE: 
 

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at the work place and has 
adopted a policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment in line 
with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder for prevention and 
redressal of complaints of sexual harassment at workplace.  
 

Summary of sexual harassment issues raised attended and dispensed during financial 
year 2021: 

  No. of complaints received: 0 
  No. of complaints disposed off: 0 
  No. of cases pending for more than 90 days: Nil 

 

28. LISTING OF EQUITY SHARES: 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, the 

Company declares that the Equity Shares of the Company are listed at the BSE Limited. 

 

The Company confirms that it has paid Annual Listing Fees due to BSE Limited up to 

the Financial Year – 2020-21. 

 

29. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 

 

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the 

board of Director, to the best of their knowledge and ability, confirm that: 

 

i. In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards 

have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material 

departures; 

ii. They have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and 

made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a 

true and   fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the 

financial year and of the Profit of the Company for year under review; 

iii. They have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding 
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the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 

irregularities;  

iv. They have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis. 

v. They have laid down internal financial controls, which are adequate and are 

operating efficiently. 

vi. They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of 

all applicable laws and such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

 

30. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:  
 

The Company complies with all applicable secretarial standards. 
 

31. RISK MANAGEMENT: 
 

Your Company recognizes that risk is an integral part of business and is committed to 

managing the risks in a proactive and efficient manner. Your Company periodically 

assesses risks in the internal and external environment, along with the cost of treating 

risks and incorporates risk treatment plans in its strategy, business and operational 

plans. 
 

Your Company, through its risk management process, strives to contain impact and 

likelihood of the risks within the risk appetite as agreed from time to time with the 

Board of Directors. 

 

In Line with the regulatory requirement, the Company has constituted a Risk 

Management Committee to oversee the risk management. The details of the Committee 

along with its charter are set out in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of 

this Report. The Risk Management Policy is also posted on the website of the 

Company. 

 

32. VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER: 
 

Your Company is committed to highest standards of ethical, moral and legal business 

conduct. The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy and has established the 

necessary vigil mechanism which is in compliance with the provisions of Section 177 

(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 and under Regulation 22 of SEBI Listing Regulations 

2015, for directors and employees to report concerns about unethical behavior. No 

person has been denied access to the Chairman of the audit committee. The said policy 

has been also put up on the website of the Company at the following link. 

 

http://www.scandent.in/whistle-blower-policy.pdf 

 

The policy provides for a framework and process whereby concerns can be raised by 

its employees against any kind of discrimination, harassment, victimization or any 

other unfair practice being adopted against them. 

http://www.scandent.in/whistle-blower-policy.pdf
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33. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION & FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNING & OUTGOINGS: 

 

The particulars as prescribed under sub- section (3) (m) of Section 134 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are hereunder: 

 

a) Conservation of energy 
 

(i) the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy NIL 

(ii) the steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy NIL 

(iii) the capital investment on energy conservation equipment’s NIL 

 

(b)   Technology absorption 
 

(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption NIL 

(ii) the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, 

product development or import substitution 

NIL 

(iii) in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years 

reckoned from the beginning of the financial year)- 

 

(a) the details of technology imported NIL 

(b) the year of import; NIL 

(c) whether the technology been fully absorbed NIL 

  (d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, 

and the reasons thereof 

NIL 

(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development NIL 

 

(c)  Foreign Exchange earning & outgoings 
 

 For Year Ended 

31st March 2021 

(Rupees) 

For Year Ended 

31st March 2020 

 (Rupees) 

Expenditure- 

Foreign Travel 

Freight Forwarding Expenses 

 

NIL  

NIL 

 

NIL 

NIL 

Income- 

Commission and other income 

 

NIL 

 

NIL 

 

34. FRAUDS: 

 

During the year under review, neither the statutory auditors nor the secretarial auditor 

has reported to the audit committee, under Section 143(12) of the Act, any instances of 

fraud committed against the Company by its officers or employees, the details of 

which would need to be mentioned in the Directors’ Report. 
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35. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT: 

 

Certain statements in the Directors’ Report describing the Company’s objectives, 

projections, estimates, expectations or predictions may be forward-looking statements 

within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual results could 

differ from those expressed or implied. Important factors that could make a difference 

to the Company’s operations include labour and material availability, and prices, 

cyclical demand and pricing in the Company’s principal markets, changes in 

government regulations, tax regimes, economic. 
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Annexure – 2 

 

Information required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 5(1) of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, are given 

below: 

 

Statement of Disclosure of Remuneration under Section 197 of Companies Act, 2013 and 

Rule 5(1) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 

2014: 

 

i. Ratio of the remuneration of each Executive Director to the median remuneration of  the 

Employees of the Company for the financial year 2020-2021, the percentage increase in 

remuneration of Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and other Executive 

Director and Company Secretary during the financial year 2020-2021. 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of Director/ 

KMP 

Designation Ratio of 

remuneration of each 

Director to median 

remuneration of 

Employees 

Percentage 

increase 

in 

Remuneration 

1 Dr. Gautam Mohan 

Deshpande 

Managing Director  34.13 188% 

2 Dr. Sowmya 

Deshpande 

Whole-time 

Director  

28.20 104% 

3 Mr. Amit Tyagi CFO Not Applicable Nil 

4 Ms. Anushree 

Tekriwal 

Company 

Secretary 

Not Applicable Nil 

 

Notes: 

1. The aforesaid details are calculated on the basis of remuneration for the financial year 

2020-21. 

 

2. Median remuneration of the Company for all its employees is Rs. 1,01,072/- for the 

financial year 2020-21. 

 

3. The Non-Executive Directors of the Company are entitled for sitting fee. The details of 

remuneration of Non-Executive Directors are provided in the Corporate Governance 

Report. The ratio of remuneration and percentage increase for Non-Executive Directors 

Remuneration is therefore not considered for the purpose above. 

 

ii. The percentage decrease in the median remuneration of Employees for the 

financial year was 46.61%. 

 

iii. The Company has 212 permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on March 

31, 2021. 



 

                                                                             

27th Annual Report 2020-21 Page 35 

 

iv. Average percentage decrease in the salaries of Employees including the managerial 

personnel in the financial year. The increase in the managerial remuneration was 

Nil. The average increases every year is an outcome of Company’s market 

competitiveness as against its peer group companies. 

 

v. The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration: Not 

applicable. 

 

vi. It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid during the year is as per the 

Remuneration Policy of the Company. 

 

vii. Particulars of employees in accordance with Rule 5 (2) of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014: Nil 

 

 

 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

                                                                                                     Scandent Imaging Limited 

 

Reg off: 

Plot No. A357, Road No. 26,               Sd/-                               Sd/-                               

Wagle Industrial Estate, MIDC        Pandoo Naig                  Rajnish Kumar Pandey 

         Thane (West), Thane- 400604.           Managing Director         Director                         

CIN:L93000MH1994PLC080842         DIN: 00158221              DIN: 01096119                                    

Email: cs@scandent.in 

Website: www.scandent.in 

Tele Ph: 022-25833205 

 

  

Date: November 8, 2021 

Place: Thane    
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

Annexure – 3 

 

Form No. MR- 3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

  FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

To, 

The Members 

Scandent Imaging Limited 

A-357, Road No. 26, 

Wagle Industrial Estate,  

MIDC, 

Thane (West) 400604. 

 

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 

and the adherence to good corporate practices by SCANDENT IMAGING LIMITED 

(hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided 

me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and 

expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 

other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the 

Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of 

secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the Audit 

period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021 complied with the statutory 

provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and 

compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting 

made hereinafter: 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021 according to the 

provisions of: 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”) and the rules made 

thereunder;  

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made 

thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment 

and External Commercial Borrowings to the extent of their applicability to the 

Company; 
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(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- 
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares 

and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 2015; 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable during the Audit period) 

(d) The Securities Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and 

Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and The Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014; 

(Not applicable during the Audit period) 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt 

Securities) Regulations, 2008; (Not applicable during the Audit period); 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 

Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing 

with client; 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 

Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable during the Audit period)and 

(h)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) 

Regulations, 2018;(Not applicable during the Audit period) 

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

(vi) OTHER LAWS SPECIFICALLY APPLICABLE TO THE COMPANY 

Following are the Specific Laws applicable to the Company: 

 

1. INDUSTRY SPECIFIC REGULATIONS 

a) Indian Medical Council Act, 1956 (“IMC Act”) 
b) Indian Medical Council (Professional Conduct, Etiquette and Ethics) 

Regulations, 2002 (“IMC Regulations”) 
c) Drugs and Cosmetic Act, 1940 

d) Narcotic Drugs and Psychotropic Substances Act, 1985 

e) Pharmacy Act, 1948 

f) Clinical Establishments (Registration & Regulation) Act, 2010 

g) Atomic Energy Act, 1962 

h) Atomic Energy (Radiation Protection ) Rules, 2004 

i) Safety Code for Medical Diagnostic X-Ray Equipment and Installation, 2001 

j) Radiation Surveillance Procedures for Medical Application of Radiation 1989 

k) Pre-Conception and Pre-Natal Diagnostic Techniques Act, 1994 

l) Medical Termination of Pregnancy Act, 1971 

m) Consumer Protection Act, 1986 

n) Food Safety and Standards Act, 2006 
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2. ENVIRONMENT REGULATIONS 

a) Environment (Protection) Act, 1986 

b) Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974 

c) Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Cess Act, 1977 

d) Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution ) Act, 1981 

e) Biomedical Waste Management Rules, 2016 

f) Hazardous and other Wastes (Management and Transboundary Movement) 

Rules, 2016 

 

(vii) OTHER LAWS APPLICABLE TO THE COMPANY 

The adequate systems and processes are in place to monitor and ensure compliance 

with general laws like labour laws, environmental laws etc. to the extent of their 

applicability to the Company. 

 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards 

issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.  

 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, 

Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

I further report that: 

i) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 

Executive Director, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. 

ii) Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and 

detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists 

for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items 

before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

iii) All decisions at Board Meetings & Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as 

recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or the Committees of 

the Board, as the case may be. 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company 

commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure 

compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

 

I further report that during the audit period: 

 

i. Mr. Pandoo Naig was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company in the Board 
Meeting held on 15.09.2020 and such appointment was regularized by passing Special 
Resolution in the Annual General Meeting held on 29.12.2020. 
  

ii. Mr. Gaurav Goyal was appointed as Additional Independent Director of the Company in 
the Board Meeting held on 15.09.2020 and such appointment was regularized by 
passing Special Resolution in the Annual General Meeting held on 29.12.2020. 
 



 

                                                                             

27th Annual Report 2020-21 Page 39 

 

iii. Mr. Dhananjay Parikh was appointed as Additional Independent Director of the 
Company in the Board Meeting held on 15.09.2020 and such appointment was 
regularized by passing Special Resolution in the Annual General Meeting held on 
29.12.2020 
 

iv. The Company has appointed Company Secretary Ms. Sheetal Musale w.e.f. 31.08.2020. 
 

v. Mrs. Pratibha Walinjkar resigned as director of the Company w.e.f. 15.09.2020. 
 

vi. Dr. Mohan Shankaranarayan Vaidyanathan resigned as director of the Company w.e.f. 
15.09.2020. 
 

vii. Dr. Gautam Deshpande retired as Managing Director of the company w.e.f. 31.01.2021. 
 

 

Signature: 

                                                                                                           (Ajay Kumar) 

                                                                                                          Ajay Kumar & Co. 

                                                                                                             FCS No. 3399 

                                                                                                             C.P. No. 2944 

                                                                                               UDIN: F003399C000492461 

Date: June 21, 2021                                                                                                  

Place: Thane  

 

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ‘Annexure A’ 
and forms an integral part of this report. 
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‘Annexure A’ 
 

To, 

The Members 

Scandent Imaging Limited 

A-357, Road No.26, 

Wagle Industrial Estate,  

MIDC, 

Thane (West) -400604. 

 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the 

company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records 

based on our audit.  
 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain 

reasonable assurances about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial 

records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are 

reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we 

followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and 

Books of Accounts of the company.  
 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the 

compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 
 

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 

regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was 

limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 
 

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 

company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has 

conducted the affairs of the company. 

 

 

 

Signature: 

(Ajay Kumar) 

Ajay Kumar & Co. 

FCS No. 3399 

C.P. No. 2944 

UDIN: F003399C000492461 

Date:  June 21, 2021                                                                                                 

Place: Mumbai   
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 

SECTION I – THE INDIAN HEALTHCARE ENVIRONMENT 

 

THE NOVEL CORONOVIRUS (COVID – 19) OUTBREAK AND ROLE OF THE HEALTHCARE 

INDUSTRY 

 

The year gone by has witnessed perhaps the worst global healthcare crisis in over a decade. 

The unexpected outbreak of COVID-19 has severely impacted countries across both the 

developed and the developing world and has challenged healthcare systems at a never seen 

before scale. The loss of human lives and the suffering of people have been overwhelming 

and deeply saddening. Lockdowns being witnessed in country after country and travel bans 

to break the chain of transmission of the virus impacted economies and industries forcing 

further economic hardships and turmoil. The pandemics rapid spread and the limited 

understanding of the virus and its various strains has altered the ways of both social and 

personal interactions as well as revised professional working styles. Governments across the 

globe and their respective healthcare systems have worked in tandem with healthcare 

institutions such as the World Health Organisation (WHO) to mitigate this unfortunate 

human calamity. 

 

Our country too has borne the brunt of the pandemic in FY 2020-21 and witnessed a second 

wave in early FY 2021-22 that has had a far worse impact in terms of COVID cases and 

resultant deaths. The pandemic in India, has seen ~29.4 Million patients being infected with 

the virus, the second largest number after the United States and ~3.9 Lakhs deaths (Source : 

Government : Arogya Setu App, data as on June 30, 2021).  

 

While challenges in healthcare infrastructure and lack of medical resources have been a 

severe constraint in controlling the pandemic, our healthcare institutions both public and 

private have acted on a war footing to scale up infrastructure across the healthcare value 

chain be it in terms of beds, isolation centers, medical equipment, medicines or testing 

capabilities. Clinicians, nurses and paramedics have and continue to work dedicatedly to 

ensure the best available care for COVID patients.  

 

Some of the key measures undertaken to mitigate the pandemic were as follows: 

 Ensuring accessibility and availability of beds and medical resources for COVID 

patients by the government and the private healthcare industry. 

 Effective checks and regulations for making the treatment and related tests for COVID 

more affordable. 

 Roll out of safety and isolation protocols, medical treatment nuances and 

infrastructure regulations in order to provide a standard set of practices governing 

COVID related matters. 

 Leveraging information technology enablers such as mobile and COVID related apps, 

online test reporting and websites for information dissemination. 
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 New avenues to provide healthcare services in a faster and efficient manner such as 

mobile testing vans, home collection of samples, home healthcare and drive thru 

testing centers.  

 

In the aftermath of the second wave seen in early FY 2021-22, the government and 

healthcare institutions in the country have scaled up their resource capabilities to be 

better prepared for the future were such a crisis to happen again. At the same time 

collective efforts are underway to accelerate the manufacturing of vaccines and 

ensuring that vaccination programs cover the entire population of the country as 

quickly as possible. This would go a long way in helping people see a relatively lesser 

impact due to COVID and protect lives and livelihood. As of June 22, 2021, 289 

million doses of COVID vaccines have been administered across the country (Source: 

WHO India Situation Report, COVID – 19 dated June 23, 2021) and both government 

and private healthcare setups are further being scaled up to increase coverage. The 

government has earmarked a significant investment outlay for vaccination and allied 

resources required to mitigate the pandemic. 
 

A. Snapshot of The Indian Healthcare and Hospital Industry 
 

India’s healthcare sector is one of the largest sectors both in terms of revenue as well 

as employment. Healthcare comprises hospitals, medical devices, pharmaceutical, 

clinical trials, telemedicine, medical tourism, health insurance and diagnostics. The 

size of the overall Indian Healthcare market was estimated at US$ 265 Billion in 2020. 

The hospital and the diagnostics segment forms a relatively large portion of the 

overall healthcare market and is estimated to contribute approximately 40-45% share 

in the overall healthcare market segment. Both the hospital and the diagnostics 

segment are highly fragmented with a majority of facilities being in the unorganised 

segment and only handful of hospital and diagnostics players forming the organised 

market. The Government i.e. public healthcare system comprises secondary and 

tertiary care hospitals in key cities and primary healthcare centres (PHCs) in rural 

areas. The private sector provides secondary, tertiary and quaternary care hospital 

facilities with a major concentration in metros, tier I and tier II cities. The hospital 

industry in India is also characterised by an unequitable balance between public and 

private hospital infrastructure in select major cities like New Delhi wherein public 

infrastructure outweighs private healthcare availability (Source: CDDEP - Centre for 

Disease Dynamics Economics and Policy); also providing a further potential for private 

healthcare to expand and grow in such locations. 

 
 

(i) Characteristics of the Industry 

 Growing health awareness and changing attitude towards preventive 

healthcare 

 Low cost and better value driven outcomes driving the country’s medical 

tourism segment. 

 Rising income levels and a higher per capita income resulting in increasing 

affordability and 
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 demand for quality healthcare services 

 The pandemic catalyzing long-term changes in attitudes towards personal 

health and hygiene, health insurance, fitness and nutrition. 

 The relative lack of public healthcare infrastructure offering tertiary and 

quaternary healthcare services in a majority of states in the country as 

compared to private healthcare. 

 

(ii) Government Initiatives 
 

The Government of India has been taking a holistic approach to Health and is 

focusing on strengthening three areas: Preventive, Curative, and Wellbeing. Select 

key initiatives taken by the government to promote Indian Healthcare industry are 

as under. 
 

a. Launch of the PM AtmaNirbhar Swasth Bharat Yojana, with an outlay of about 

64,180 Crores over 6 years. This will enable developing capacities of primary, 

secondary, and tertiary care health systems, strengthen existing national 

institutions, and create new healthcare institutions. This will be in addition to 

the National Health Mission. 

b. To strengthen nutritional content, delivery, outreach, and outcome, the 

government plans to merge the Supplementary Nutrition Programme and the 

Poshan Abhiyan and launch the Mission Poshan 2.0. An intensified strategy to 

be adopted to improve nutritional outcomes across 112 Aspirational Districts. 

c. Plans to increase the number of research and COVID-19 RT-PCR labs to 

strengthen COVID-19 testing services. 

d. Providing an amount of Rs. 35,000 Crores for COVID-19 vaccination program 

for FY 2021-22. 
 

The government has outlaid a budget of Rs. 2,23,846 Crores for Health and Wellbeing 

in FY 2021-22 as against previous year’s budget of Rs. 94,452 Crores, an increase of 

137%. (Source: Budget 2021-22, Government of India). Furthermore, as per the Union 

Health Ministry, the Government of India aims to increase the public healthcare 

expenditure to 2.5% of the Gross Domestic Product (GDP) by 2025. 

 

 

(iii)  Key Growth Drivers 
 

The demand for healthcare services in India is likely to remain robust in the 

foreseeable future. The current pandemic will also see the need for healthcare 

services as being one of paramount importance in terms of coverage, preparedness 

and accessibility, providing a further impetus to growth and longer-term opportunity 

for the sector. Some of the key factors that are expected to drive demand for 

healthcare services are graphically depicted as follows. 
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Favorable demographics of India 

 
(iv)  Impact on healthcare sector due to COVID-19 during FY 2020-21 

 

The pandemic has placed an enormous strain on the global healthcare sector’s 

workforce, infrastructure and supply chain. COVID-19 is also accelerating change 

across the ecosystem and forcing public and private health systems to adapt and 

innovate in a short period of time.  
 

India also faced a similar impact wherein almost all the sectors, including 

healthcare, were significantly impacted due to the nationwide lockdown. However, 

private Indian healthcare players have and continue to steadfastly provide all 

support that the government needs in terms of testing, isolation beds, medical 

staff and equipment, home healthcare support and other measures in order to 

control the impact of the pandemic. 

 

The healthcare industry, along with the central and state governments, set up 

dedicated COVID-19 hospitals, isolation centres and tech-enabled mapping of 

resources. To effectively manage the outbreak, the Indian government also 

leveraged technology and developed various applications both at the central and 

state-levels. The Aarogya Setu mobile app which assisted in mapping, contact 

tracing and self-assessment was widely used throughout the country. 
 

Key Trends being observed in the Hospital business 
 

a) Hospital recovery likely to be gradual 

 While Q1 faced the maximum impact on occupancy, hospitals witnessed higher 

occupancy in Q2 & Q3 of FY 2020-21 with the ramp up primarily due to higher 

occupancy in COVID beds. A slow recovery was also observed in Non COVID 

bed occupancy which gained traction towards end Q3 and in Q4. 

 FY 2021-22, non-COVID occupancy declined once again in early Q1 of FY 2021-

22 with a significant rise in COVID occupancy. From mid-May FY 2021-22, early 

and encouraging signs of declining COVID cases are being seen; traction is also 

being witnessed in non-COVID occupancy. With the same trend expected to 

continue, hospital occupancy could reach normal levels in the short to medium 

term. 

8% 

27% 

65% 

India’s Demographic Dividend, 2015 

60+ Years

0-14 Years

15-59 Years
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b) Emerging Trends in the hospital and diagnostics space 

 

 Home healthcare and Teleconsultations: 

o Home healthcare is likely to witness significant traction mainly driven 

by the geriatric population. Many private healthcare players are 

partnering with home healthcare firms or setting up a separate vertical 

to cater to this segment. 

o Most of the hospitals encouraged teleconsultations and even launched 

digital platforms to provide various healthcare services (telemedicine, 

digital test reports, etc) which can be offered through the virtual 

medium. 

o Diagnostic players increased their focus on the home collection 

segment 

 

 Patient and Staff Safety 

o Various initiatives have been taken to ensure the patient and staff 

safety such as screening at entry, separate patient flow as well as 

setting up a separate wing for COVID patients, altering the visiting 

hours, etc 

o Rapid recovery protocols have been formed as most patients prefer 

home care overstaying at the hospital 

o New Medical Protocals have been setup for surgical procedures 

o Mandatory COVID tests for patients who will be undergoing any surgical 

procedure. 

 

 

B. Indian Diagnostic Industry 

 

Diagnosis is the first step to disease management. Globally ~80% of physician 

diagnoses are a result of laboratory tests. There are mainly 3 types of tests - (1) 

Routine tests, Common Tests like sugar, Cholesterol, HIV, pap, pregnancy, etc; (2) 

Clinical lab tests to monitor diseases and drug treatments and (3) Specialty tests: 

Genetics, immunology, oncology, endocrinology and other critical segments. 

 

Market for diagnostic services has been growing in India over the past couple of years 

at a rate of approx. 15-20% and is estimated at ~ US$ 9 Billion in market size (` 675 

Billion) (Source: Edelweiss Research). Pathology accounted for nearly 80% of the market 

while Radiology accounted for the remaining 20%. Future growth is likely to be driven 

by improving healthcare facilities, medical diagnostic and pathological laboratories, 

private-public projects and enhanced penetration of the health insurance sector. 
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Impact of COVID-19 on the diagnostic Industry 

 

Though COVID-19 had a significant impact initially on the diagnostics sector with a 

steep fall in patient volumes, private labs ramped up COVID testing capacities and 

increased their focus on home collection services. With the gradual opening up of the 

economy along with new initiatives such as mobile testing vans and drive through 

sites / centers for conducting routine tests as well as COVID tests; a faster recovery 

was witnessed in the second half of the fiscal. 

 

At present, almost all major organised players have witnessed a sharp rise in their 

revenues and profitability, benefiting from increased demand for COVID-19 testing as 

well as other tests related to COVID-19. The non-COVID business has achieved near 

normalcy and incrementally COVID tests contributed over 25%-30% of revenue during 

the year. Anticipating more workload in quarters to come, more COVID testing 

facilities are being created all over the country, to meet the demand that may rise due 

to prolonged pandemic. COVID-19 has demonstrated how important it is to have 

access to fast, reliable tests. Technology-led diagnostics, home collection, on-line 

reports and the like shall play a critical role to improve customer experience. There is 

also a requirement to adopt a more analytical approach towards gathering health data 

to monitor public health and establish trends which can be made possible through 

digital means and advanced technologies like machine learning and Artificial 

Intelligence (AI). 

 

C. Outlook on Healthcare Sector 

 

The COVID pandemic has exposed the inadequacy of the Indian healthcare sector, for 

both public as well as private organisations. It has showcased the requirement to 

significantly strengthen the sector to withstand such pandemics in the future. The 

Government would have to substantially improve upon its funding for healthcare 

infrastructure. Shortage of manpower in the sector needs to be addressed in an 

efficient manner which should also target the healthcare related vocational trainings. 

Given the existing high prevalence of non-communicable diseases and chronic 

ailments such as cardiovascular diseases, diabetes, respiratory ailments, mental 

health and neurological disorders, oncology related disorders, and musculoskeletal 

and urological disorders; the demand for preventive health care is expected to grow. 

Proliferation of life style diseases is already high in select states such as Punjab, Tamil 

Nadu, Kerala, Andhra Pradesh and Karnataka (Source: India: Health of the Nation’s 

States, The India State-Level Disease Burden Initiative: Disease Burden Trends in the 

States of India 1990 to 2016). In addition to the above, the pandemic is also expected 

to result in the shifting of healthcare focus from curative care to preventive care, 

bringing about changes in hygiene and social etiquettes and further adding to the 

demand for preventive healthcare. 
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Given the acute shortages of medical resources witnessed during the pandemic; 

opportunities for large private healthcare organisations to provide consultancy to 

smaller and medium scale hospitals and healthcare providers in tier – II cities could 

also emerge.  Expertise and experience of large private healthcare players enabling 

smaller healthcare providers to ramp up facilities in terms of ICU’s, ventilators and 

the like and respond to sudden epidemics in smaller cities could help mitigate the 

impact of such outbreaks to a considerable extent. Advance tieups and JVs between 

healthcare providers keeping overall feasibility in mind appear to be clear 

opportunities which could be explored. 

 

Healthcare delivery is expected to witness a significant transition going forward with 

an emphasis on technology, digitisation and information systems. Virtual 

consultations by healthcare professionals could become the mainstream care delivery 

model post-pandemic. Home healthcare services have picked up during the last one 

year and expected to continue to gain traction given the current environment. In the 

diagnostics space, preventive care and the wellbeing testing segment is expected to 

grow at a higher pace compared to the industry growth rate. Integrated health 

tracking mobile applications, government initiatives, and online services such as 

booking appointment online for preventive healthcare check-ups, obtaining reports 

online, home collection of samples will further augment future growth in this 

industry.  

 

While all these pose a challenge in the short to medium term, over the longer term 

these would result in a more robust and structured healthcare environment in terms 

of quality, affordability and accessibility. 

 

 

RETAIL PHARMACY SECTOR 

 

The Indian Retail Pharmacy sector has been witnessing healthy growth over the past 

few years due to an increasing consumer base and rising healthcare expenditure. Most 

industry experts anticipate that the Indian pharmacy market will be a bright spot for 

the Healthcare sector over the next decade. In the entire healthcare delivery value 

chain, retail pharmacy is one of the most fragmented sub-segments. The Indian Retail 

pharmacy market has been registering healthy growth largely on account of rising 

demand for OTC drugs and private label products fuelled by extensive advertisement 

by various organizations. There is an estimated total of 8,50,000 retail pharmacies 

(chemists) in India out of which 8,45,000 falls under the unorganized category. The 

number of branded organized pharmacy stores is less than 6,000 and constitute <5% 

of the total market size 

 

Organized Retail Pharmacy refers to trading activities undertaken by licensed retailers 

which include corporate backed hyper markets, retail chains and privately owned 

large retail businesses. Key players in this sector are also venturing into the market 
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with either wholly owned pharmacies or through franchises and are also scaling up by 

setting up several service touch points in cities across India. They are changing the 

face of the pharmacy sector by bridging service gaps. The Organized retail pharmacy 

market size has been growing at an average of 22-25%. Industry reports expect the 

growth to be between 20-22% over the coming decade. Analysts expect investments in 

excess of USD 1 bn over the next few years in this sector.  

 

 

ONLINE PHARMACY AND PATHOLOGY 

 

The COVID crisis has provided a significant boost to the adoption of digital 

healthcare, especially for e-pharmacies. e-pharmacies account for 3% share of India’s 

pharma market and are likely to account for 10-12% share in the next 10 years. The 

number of households using e pharmacy platforms rose substantially from ~3.5 

million pre-COVID levels in FY20 to ~9 million in May’20.  

 

The online pharmacy market in India is at a very nascent stage as compared to the 

other developed economies. With consumers using technology to bridge the service 

quality gap, digital pharmacies are gaining popularity in Tier I and Tier II cities, as 

they are banking on scale and better distribution networks. Eventually, the online 

mechanism is bound to spread to Tier III and Tier IV cities also, which will help 

generate higher revenues for the sector. Additionally, these online pharmacies are 

also slowly gaining attention in the e-commerce industry space, both by the 

Government and consumers, with its impressive growing market penetration rate. 

 

The convenience provided to customers through online booking, home collection of 

samples, and online reporting are the driving factors behind diagnostic services. The 

success of this model lies in the simple fact that it reduces the common man’s burden 

of travelling for any kind of diagnostic service. This convenience has helped in 

tapping significant opportunities for entities with a strong network and high-tech lab. 

Thus, increasing the revenue turnaround time by reporting a quick result. 

 

The coming years will feature higher incidence of online enabled delivery of 

healthcare services, with high amenability for diagnostics as well. Companies like 

DLPL will benefit from sustained investments in core technology platforms, owned 

Apps and online branding. Partnerships with third party aggregators and backing 

capacity build-up in home collection will give the organised industry a further 

advantage. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

                                                                             

27th Annual Report 2020-21 Page 49 

 

GROWING HEALTH INSURANCE MARKET 

 

Health insurance encourages demand for healthcare services as the insured pays a 

premium for the policy which is reimbursed by the insurer in case he/she has to 

undergo treatment on account of illness, sickness or disease. The insurance, to an 

extent covers the health expenses of an individual and reduces his/her burden of 

healthcare costs. Therefore, an increase in health insurance market will drive up 

demand for healthcare services. In India, out-of-pocket (OOP) expenditure on health 

accounted for nearly 63% of total health expenditure as of 2018; the highest among 

many other countries. Nearly 25% of the rural population and 18% of the urban 

population is dependent on borrowings for funding their healthcare expenditure. 

Also, nearly 68% of the rural population and 75% of the urban population use their 

household savings on healthcare related expenditure. Health expenditure contributes 

to nearly 3.6% and 2.9% of rural and urban poverty, respectively and annually, an 

estimated 60 to 80 million people fall into poverty due to healthcare-related 

expenditure. However, Pradhan Mantri Jan Arogya Yojana (PMJAY), is expected to 

easen healthcare affordability and reduce healthcare expenditure to some degree, 

especially for the deprived population. Low health-insurance penetration is one of the 

major impediments to the growth of the healthcare delivery industry in India, as 

affordability of quality healthcare facilities by the lower income groups remains an 

issue. Health insurance coverage has increased from 17% in fiscal 2012 to 36% in 

fiscal 2020. 

 

Out-of-pocket healthcare spend as percentage of total healthcare expenditure  

 
Source: Global Health Expenditure Database- World Health Organisation, CRISIL Research 

 

As per the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority (IRDA), nearly 499 

million people have health insurance coverage in India (as of fiscal 2020), as against 

288 million (in fiscal 2015), but despite this robust growth, the penetration in fiscal 

2020 stood at only 36%. The growing incidence of disease coupled with low 

Government funding has led to an increase in the financial burden for healthcare 

among the general public. Against a backdrop of rising healthcare costs, this glaringly 

underscores the crying necessity for larger health coverage for the populace. The 

market for health insurance is definitely on the rise. 
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INDIA’S HEALTHCARE INDUSTRY – CHALLENGES, OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS 

CHALLENGES 

 

Despite the growth in Indian Healthcare, the industry has got its plethora of 

challenges. 

 

 Buildings and Infrastructure: A skewed distribution of healthcare 

infrastructure, poor maintenance of its existing facilities and lack of faith in 

some of the locally manufactured equipment. 

 Human Resources: Acute Shortage of Manpower at most levels in the healthcare 

industry. Absence of a uniform and effective HR policy and inadequate HR 

database. Long term retention of qualified healthcare staff in Tier 2 & Tier 3 

locations. Intense competitiveness amongst Hospitals in all Tier cities has let to 

unsustainable increase in remuneration for qualifies personnel. This is definitely 

a show stopper for ensuring growth in this sector. 

 Pharma and Drugs: Difficult to co-ordinate and regulate the pharma sector, 

since it is controlled by multiple government departments. Further with 

increased regulations in prices of drugs and consumables it is important to 

ensure that healthcare providers are able to remain financially sustainable in the 

long term. 

 Heterogeneous Markets: Need for proper healthcare services in India are 

defined by the unique characteristics of local markets – demographics, disease 

profile, customer attitudes, seasonal variations, price sensitivity and others. 

Even hospitals in two different locations in the same state will operate under 

different set of parameters. Due to complications, involved significant 

management time is required in sustaining clinical standards, balancing case 

mix, ensuring adequate volumes and upgrading technology regularly. 

 Medical Education: Regional imbalances in Medical Colleges and questionable 

quality of several medical colleges are a major challenge. There exists poor co-

ordination between medical education and government health departments. 

 

OPPORTUNITIES 
 

While challenges exist, the industry has innumerable opportunities to flourish in the 

coming years. 
 

 Commitment of Government: Commitment of the Government is at a high to 

improve the situation. Various incentives are being passed by the Government to 

increase domestic productions of devices and equipment (recent manufacturing 

initiatives of Ventilators and PPE are clear indicators), for setting up of 

laboratories and diagnostics, facilities for medical education and others. 

 Human Resources: Large population engenders massive domestic demand for 

healthcare services. Also India’s twin demographic pattern of growth in the 

number of young and old people, presents an opportunity to serve the 

healthcare expectations of the young while attending to the increasing 
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healthcare requirements of the elderly. Low cost qualified manpower potentially 

makes it possible to provide treatment to overseas patients at very competitive 

prices. 

 Pharma and Drugs: Increasing domestic focus on generics. There exists high 

demand for drugs for both communicable and non-communicable diseases and 

India is favored country for clinical trials due to its established advantages. 

 Twin Disease Burden: The rise of non-communicable diseases, and their 

contribution to the country’s disease burden presents an important opportunity 

to Hospitals. Lifestyle diseases such as cardiac ailments, diabetes and 

hypertension, cancer and orthopaedic ailments will drive the need for curative 

care. The burden of communicable and infectious diseases will also continue to 

be an area of focus in light of the recent pandemic. 

 Medical Education: Medical profession being viewed as valuable, common shows 

preference to engaging in it. Low doctor to patient ratio also presents 

considerable scope for employment. 

 Preventive Health and Wellness: Health awareness is on an increased trajectory 

across. More people are aware about the status of their health and are willing to 

invest time, money and efforts for improving it thus preventing critical illness. 

This awareness has led to a great opportunity in the areas of preventive health 

and wellness, including preventive health checks, diet and nutrition, exercise 

and well-being. 

 

THREATS 

 

 Rising Costs: Input costs in healthcare are rising. Minimum wage revisions are 

underway in several categories of manpower; real estate continues to inflate; and 

import cost of equipment and consumables are high consequent to increase in 

INR / USD rate. Increased competition has also meant that compensation 

expectations for skilled manpower will go up. 

 Human Resources: Shortage of skilled manpower is an acute problem in this 

sector. Unless immediate steps are taken to increase the number of doctors, 

nurses and paramedical personnel, the shortage will lead to prohibitive costs 

and derail the industry in general. 

 Regulatory Interventions: The intrinsic value of a service is more than just the 

cost of inputs. Any attempt to regulate the prices of healthcare inputs without 

providing for the comprehensive costs of providing quality services, will 

compromise the quality of care. 

 Medical Education: Brain Drain and inability to retain quality faculty will have a 

lasting impact on the quality of several medical colleges is a major challenge. 

There exists poor co-ordination between medical education and government 

health departments. 
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RISK AND CONCERNS 
 
Risks are an unavoidable and integral part of any enterprise. Efficient management of 

business risks is a key factor that determines growth, profitability and at times, even 

survival. In the last few years, the healthcare industry in India has been witnessing 

increased consolidation even among the larger players. Further, Government 

intervention, by way of an active regulatory regime, be it in terms of price control or 

capping of margins on medicines and implants has been stepped up. State and 

Central Healthcare coverage schemes are also impacting industry margins.  

 

At Family Care Hospitals, we continue to strive for a focused approach on risk 

identification, management and mitigation. We are documenting operational risks and 

concerns at the unit level as well as the strategic and financial risks at the enterprise 

level in the form of a robust risk register. The aim is to improve responsibility 

accounting and bring the right stakeholders to focus on appropriate risk mitigation 

and monitoring measures at various levels within the organisation. 

 

 

SECTION II – THE COMPANY 

 

Financial and Operational highlights 

 

REVENUE 
 

The Company’s revenue from operations increased from Rs. 1326.25 lakh in 2019-20 

to Rs. 3537.27 in 2020-21 registering growth of 166.7%. The profit after tax for the 

year increased to Rs. 407.41 Lakhs as compared to Rs. 2.85 Lakhs in the previous year 

which is incomparable.  
 

Family Care Hospitals extremely humbled and delighted to share that both our 

hospitals have now been declared as Covid hospitals and tertiary care/ support is 

being provided to all critical and non-critical Covid patient today at our facilities. 

Family Care Hospitals is also accelerating its efforts towards vaccination at both 

onsite and offsite locations including doing corporate tie ups and arrangements with 

residential condominiums and colonies.  
 

The Company has undertaken a series of measures to create the COVID necessary 

infrastructure for the safety of all its patient and staff including being amongst the 

first to establish Flu clinics for screening and management of patients. The Company, 

to safeguard its employees and to provide assistance in the case of any unfortunate 

incident in the line of duty, also increased the insurance cover for all its frontline 

workers both for life and medical insurance coverage. Family Care Hospitals ensured 

that medical protocols and up-to-date new treatment and tests in COVID related 

aspects were quickly rolled out across its network. Safety guidelines for staff and 

patients, work from home measures and the like were also initiated to ensure a 

smooth and safe patient and hospital workflow environment. 
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A) Family Care Hospitals Healthcare 

Family Care Hospitals healthcare verticals of the Company primarily comprise 

hospitals, diagnostics and day care specialty facilities. Currently, the Company has 2 

hospitals one is in Mira Road (Mira Bhayender Municipal Corporation) and Mahim 

(Brihanmumbai Municipal Corporation), The Company network comprises over 123 

operational beds as of March 31, 2021. 

 

(i) Business Strategy  

While having successfully navigated the challenges in FY 2020-21, as the 

organisation enters into FY 2021-22, its focus would be on building back 

topline by undertaking several revenue growth initiatives including building 

upcountry market, enhancing engagement with key corporate clients, further 

strengthening its community connect in neighborhood areas, optimally 

leveraging its digital marketing to expand to a larger market and regaining 

international business with an emphasis on building direct business. 

 

The Company plans to add approximately 123 beds in FY 2021-22, The focus 

on cost transformation will continue with our endeavor being to retain and 

carry forward the efficiencies we brought about in the cost structure during 

COVID-19. Efforts are also underway to rationalise drugs and consumables 

cost, bring in efficiencies in capex process and optimise indirect spend.  
 

Taking forward our portfolio strategy, we will continue to invest in our high 

performing facilities and at the same time put all efforts to transform and 

turn-around a few under-performing but high potential facilities. 
 

While the country witnessed a severe second wave in early FY 2021-22, the 

higher number of COVID cases has led the Company to allocate almost 70% of 

its operational bed capacity for COVID treatment at the peak of the second 

wave in mid-April / early May FY 2021-22. The challenges and learnings of the 

past year during the first wave have also helped the Company managing the 

current COVID case load more effectively. While infrastructure challenges 

were severe this time round, the Company undertook all efforts to provide 

the best possible care to its patients. With standardisation in treatments, tests 

and improvisation in clinical care along with a much higher COVID bed 

occupancy, the second wave has had a relatively less impact on the 

Company’s performance as compared to the first wave witnessed in FY 2021-

21. With well established and standardised protocols for safety, screening and 

isolation and the availability of faster avenues of reaching and treating 

patients such as mobile apps, vaccination outreach programs, tele / video 

consults, home healthcare, home collection of samples and capabilities for 

faster ramp up of medical resources; the Company expects to be relatively 

better placed to treat COVID patients going forward. 
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Medical Strategy and Operations 

The organization constantly strives towards adopting a patient centric 

approach in all aspects of healthcare service delivery with stringent medical 

processes and protocols which are instrumental in achieving high standards 

in patient care and superior clinical outcomes. Our systems-based approach is 

continuously monitored, evaluated, and improved upon, enabling greater 

transparency and clinical success. 

 

Contactless delivery of services 

To further enhance the safety of our staff and patients, Family Care Hospitals 

Hospital, screening of patients, attendants and hospital staff entering the 

hospital. The robot used facial and speech recognition for screening visitors 

for COVID-19 symptoms i.e. fever, cough and cold. Basis the success or failure 

of the screening test, the person is able to enter hospital premises or is 

directed to the Flu clinic for further examination. This limits human 

interactions leading to a significant reduction in transmission of the virus. 

 

Family Care Hospitals Vaccination Plan 

In anticipation and preparedness for the COVID-19 vaccine in India, the 

Family Care Hospitals Vaccination Plan (based on the MoHFW, COVID-19 

Vaccine Operational Guidelines) were released in January 2021. Focus areas 

included: Infrastructure, Workflow, Logistics, for preventing misuse of 

Vaccines. 

 

Training on COVID medical protocols 

MSOG led the extensive training / awareness programs on each aspect of 

COVID management protocols set by the Government of India. Additional 

best practices were researched and adopted at across all hospitals. Leveraging 

various digital learning platforms curated & contextualised digital solutions, 

virtual / online training programs addressing the emerging skill requirements 

such as working remotely, tele sales, handling calls during COVID-19, 

enhancing productivity & professional skills were deployed. 

 

In collaboration with Family Care Hospitals Mental Health Department, self-

care strategies & managing stress virtual training programs were conducted 

for frontline health care workers a cross Family Care Hospitals, reinforced by 

self-care micro learning modules and online courses. 

 

Cost Optimisation: 

HR led a voluntary salary reduction scheme which was subscribed by senior 

members of all employee groups especially clinicians and senior executives.  

 

While the above COVID related activities were being managed, the other HR 

initiatives continued in a slightly scaled down manner. Hiring of critical 
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resources, working on ongoing critical projects like Project Fusion, manpower, 

norms, productivity, benchmarks, HR functional audit, wage code impact 

analysis were some of the key things undertaken during last year. To 

strengthen culture of performance, the Balance Score Card framework has 

been deployed across units, translating in better integration of qualitative 

aspects in addition to financial parameters as organisation strategic intent. 

 

As on March 31, 2021, the Company had a total employee base in the 

hospitals & the diagnostics business of approximately 116 employees. 

 

Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy  

 

The internal control system has been designed to commensurate with the 

nature of business, size and complexity of operations and is monitored by the 

management to provide reasonable assurance on the achievement of 

objectives, effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial 

reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. 

 

The Company has institutionalised a robust process and internal control 

system commensurate with its size and operations.  

 

The internal control framework is supplemented with an internal audit 

program that provides an independent view of the efficacy and effectiveness 

of the process and control environment and through its observations 

provides an input to the management to support continuous improvement 

program. The internal audit program is managed by an Internal Audit 

function directly reporting to the Audit Committee of the Board. 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 
 

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON THE CODE OF GOVERNANCE:  

 

Corporate Governance is a set of systems and practices to ensure that the affairs of the 

Company are being managed in a way which ensures accountability, transparency, and 

fairness in all its transactions in widest sense and meet up its Stakeholder’s aspirations 

and societal expectations. It is about promoting fairness, equity, transparency, 

accountability and respect for laws. 

 

The Company has always endeavored to implement the Corporate Governance process in 

the most democratic form as maximization of shareholders wealth is cornerstone of 

your Company. Your Company has been committed in adopting and adhering to global 

recognized standards of corporate conduct towards its employees, clients and the 

society at large. The management team of your Company exerts the strict adherence to 

Corporate Governance practices in order to cover the entire spectrum of governance 

activities and benchmark its practices with the prevailing guidelines of Corporate 

Governance.  

 

This Report, therefore, states the compliance status as per requirements of Companies 

Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations, 2015. Given below are the Company’s Corporate 

Governance policies and practices for 2020-21. M/s. Scandent Imaging Limited has 

complied with the statutory and regulatory requirements stipulated in the applicable 

laws, including Listing Regulations, 2015. 

 

2. ETHICS/GOVERNANCE POLICIES: 
 

Your Company strives to conduct business and strengthen the relationships in a manner 

that is dignified, distinctive and responsible. The Company adheres to ethical standards 

to ensure integrity, transparency, independence and accountability in dealing with all 

stakeholders. Therefore, the Company has adopted various codes and policies to carry 

out our duties in an ethical manner. Some of these codes and policies are: 
 

 Code of Conduct for Prohibition of Insider Trading. 

 Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower Policy. 

 Policy on Related Party Transactions.  

 Policy for evaluation of performance of the Board of Directors.  

 Nomination and Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 

       and other Employees. 

 Code for Independent Directors.  

 Risk Management Policy. 

 Code of Conduct for Director and Senior Management. 

    Policy for annual evaluation by the Board of its own performance, that of its    

   committees and individual Directors. 

 Policy for prevention of sexual harassment of woman at workplace.  
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3. BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

 

The Board of Directors key purpose is to ensure the Company’s prosperity by collectively 

directing the Company's affairs, whilst meeting the appropriate interests of 

its shareholders and stakeholders. In addition to business and financial issues, Boards 

of Directors must deal with challenges and issues relating to Corporate Governance, 

corporate social responsibility and corporate ethics. 

 

The Board of Directors is entrusted with the ultimate responsibility of the Management, 

direction and performance of the Company. 

 

DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN DIRECTORS INTER-SE: 

 

The Board of Directors is not related inter-se except:  

 Mr. Gautam Deshpande, Managing Director (retired on January 31, 2021) of the 

Company is a relative of Dr. Sowmya Deshpande, Whole Time Director (Resigned on 

April 26, 2021) of the Company (Husband and wife). 

 

 Mr. Pandoo Naig, Managing Director (appointed on April 26, 2021) is a relative of Dr. 

Sowmya Deshpande, Whole Time Director (resigned on April 26, 2021) of the 

Company (Brother and Sister). 

 

4.  COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD: 

 

The Board Comprises One Executive Director, two Non Executive Non Independent 

Directors and Three Non Executive Independent Directors. The Board has no institutional 

Nominee Director. The Company does not have regular Chairman. According to 

regulation 17(1) (b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015, where the listed entity does not 

have a regular non-executive chairperson, at least half of the board of directors shall 

comprise of independent directors  

 

 Dr. Gautam Deshpande retired from the Board as Managing Director with effect from 

close of business hours on January 31, 2021. 

 Mr. Pandoo Naig appointed as a Managing Director for a term of five years, with 

effect from April 26, 2021, subject to approval of  shareholders of the Company. 

 Dr. Vaishali Sood appointed as an Independent Director for a term of five years, with 

effect from April 26, 2021, subject to approval of shareholders of the Company.  

 Dr. Sowmya Deshpande resigned from the position of Whole Time Director w.e.f. 

close of business hours on April 26, 2021. 

 Dr. Gaurav Goyal resigned from the position of Independent Director w.e.f. close of 

business hours on May 10, 2021. 

 Dr. Rahul Sathe and Dr. Rajeev Singh appointed as Non Executive Non Independent 

Directors of the Company, with effect from June 29, 2021, subject to approval of 

shareholders of the Company.  

http://www.brefigroup.co.uk/directors/e-course/stakeholders/take_account_of_legitimate_interests.html
http://www.brefigroup.co.uk/directors/corporate_governance.html
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 Dr. Rahul Sathe resigned from the position of Non Executive Non Independent 

Director w.e.f. close of business hours on September 15, 2021. Dr. Rahul Sathe had 

vide their letter dated September 13, 2021, informed the Company of their inability 

to render their services as Non Executive Non Independent Director of the Company. 

 

The changes made in the composition of board from the period April 1, 2020 to till date 

are mentioned sequentially; 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of the 

Director 

Designation Date of appointment Date of 

cessation/expiry of 

term 

1. Dr. Pratibha 

Walinjkar 

Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

 September 15, 2020 

2. Dr. V. S. Mohan Non-Executive Non 

Independent Director 

 September 15, 2020 

3. Dr. Gautam 

Deshpande 

Managing Director - January 31, 2021 

4. Mr. Pandoo Naig Managing Director April 26, 2021  

5. Dr. Rajnish 

Pandey 

Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

- - 

6. Mr. Dhananjay 

Parikh 

Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

- - 

7. Dr. Vaishali Sood Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

April 26, 2021 - 

8. Dr. Sowmya 

Deshpande 

Whole-time director  April 26, 2021 

9. Dr. Gaurav Goyal Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

 May 10, 2021 

10. Dr. Rahul Sathe Non-Executive Non 

Independent Director 

June 29, 2021 September 15, 2021 

11. Dr. Rajeev Singh Non-Executive Non- 

Independent Director 

June 29, 2021 - 

The composition of Board represents an optimal mix of professionalism, knowledge and 

experience and enables the Board to discharge its responsibility and provide leadership 

to the business. 

 

The Composition of the Board is conformity with Regulation 17 of the SEBI Listing 

Regulations read with Section 149 of the Act. Independent Directors are non – executive 

directors as defined under Regulation 16 (1) (b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations 2015 read 

with Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”). The maximum tenure of an 

Independent Director is in compliance with the Act. All the independent Directors 

confirm that they meet the criteria as mentioned under Regulation 16 (1) b of the SEBI 

Listing Regulation 2015 read with Section 149 (6) of the act. The details of each member 

of the Board, their attendance at Board Meeting held during the year along with the 

number of directorship /committee membership /Chairmanship are given herein below: 
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Detail of composition of Board of Directors, attendance, no of directorship in other 

Companies is given below: 

Name of 
Directors 

Category No of Board 
Meeting during 
the year 

Whether 
attended 
last AGM 
held on 
December 
29, 2020 

No. of 
Directors
hip in 
listed 
entities 
including 
this 
listed 
Entity 

No. of post of 
Membership/Chairpers
on in Committee held 
in listed entities 
including this listed 
entity.** 

Held Attended  Chairman  Member 

Dr. Gautam 
Deshpande 

Managing 
Director 

4 3 Yes 1 NIL  NIL 

Dr. Rajnish 
Pandey 

Non Executive 
& Independent 
Director 

4 4 Yes 1 2 
 

 4 

Dr. Sowmya 
Gautam 
Deshpande 

Whole Time 
Director 

4 4 Yes 1 NIL 
 

1 
 

Dr. Pratibha 
Walinjkar 

Non Executive 
& Independent 
Director 

4 2 No 1 NIL NIL 

Dr. V. S. 
Mohan 

Non Executive 
& Non 
Independent 
Director 

4 2 No 1 NIL NIL 

Mr. Pandoo 
Naig 

Non Executive 
& Non 
Independent 
Director 

3 3 Yes 2 NIL 2 

Dr. Gaurav 
Goyal 

Non Executive 
& Independent 
Director 

3 3 Yes 1 1 4 

Mr. 
Dhananjay 
Parikh 

Non Executive 
& Independent 
Director 

3 3 Yes 2 NIL NIL 

  

Mr. Pandoo Naig as Managing Director and Dr. Vaishali Sood as Independent Director 

have been appointed on the Board with effect from April 26, 2021, subject to approval of 

members in the Annual General Meeting and therefore, the details pertaining to their 

attendance at the Board meetings held in Financial Year ended 2020-2021 are not 

applicable. 

 

Dr. Rajeev Singh as Non Executive Non Independent Director has been appointed on the 

Board June 29, 2021 subject to approval of members in the Annual General Meeting and 

therefore, the details pertaining to his attendance at the Board meetings held in Financial 

Year ended 2020-2021 is not applicable. 

 

Note: None of the Directors is a member of the Board of more than twenty Companies 

or a member of more than ten Board-level Committees or a Chairman of more than 

five such Committees. 
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Further, in compliance with Regulation 17A of the SEBI Listing Regulations, none of 

the Independent Directors hold directorships in more than seven listed companies. 

Further, none of the Directors who serve as Whole-time Director/Managing Director 

in any listed entity serves as an Independent Director in more than three listed 

entities. 

 

The details of equity shareholding of all the Directors are provided elsewhere in this 

Report. 

 

5. BOARD MEETING:  

 

During the year under review, the Board met 4 (Four) times in the year. The dates on 

which the Board Meeting was held are July 31, 2020, September 15, 2020, November 12, 

2020 and February 12, 2021. The meetings were scheduled well in advance and not more 

than one hundred and twenty days elapsed between any two meetings. The necessary 

quorum was present for all the meetings. 

 

During the year 2020-21, information as mentioned in Schedule II Part A of the SEBI 

Listing Regulations, has been placed before the Board for its consideration. Notice of the 

meetings is given well in advance to all the Directors in writing at their residential 

address. The draft minutes of the proceedings of the Board of Directors/Committees are 

circulated in advance and the comments, if any, received from the Directors are 

incorporated in the minutes in consultation with the Chairman.  

 

All Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of 

independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Act read with Regulation 16(1)(b) 

of the SEBI Listing Regulations. In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors 

fulfill the conditions specified in Section 149(6) of the Act read with Regulation 16(1)(b) 

of the SEBI Listing Regulations and are independent of the management. 

 

6. BOARD PROCEDURE: 

 

A detailed agenda and notes thereon are sent to each Director in advance of Board and 

Committee Meetings except for the Unpublished Price Sensitive Information which are 

circulated separately or placed at the Meetings of the Board and the Committees. All 

material information is incorporated in the agenda for facilitating meaningful and 

focused discussions at the meeting. Where it is not practicable to attach any documents 

of the agenda, it is tabled before the meeting with specific reference to this effect in the 

agenda. To enable the Board to discharge its responsibilities effectively, the Board is 

appraised at every meeting on the overall performance of the Company. A detailed 

report on operations of the Company and quarterly compliance report are also presented 

at the Board Meetings. The Board reviews strategy and business plans, annual operating 

and capital expenditure budgets, investment and exposure limits, compliance reports of 

all laws applicable to the Company, as well as steps taken by the Company to rectify 
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instances of non-compliances, if any, minutes of the Board Meetings of your Company’s 

subsidiary companies, significant transactions and arrangements entered into by the 

unlisted subsidiary companies, approval of quarterly / half yearly / Annual Financial 

Results, significant labour issues, if any, transaction pertaining to purchase / disposal of 

property, if any, major accounting provisions and write-offs, corporate restructuring, if 

any, Quarterly details of foreign exchange exposures, Minutes of meetings of the Audit 

Committee and other Committees of the Board and information on recruitment of senior 

officers just below the Board level including appointment or removal of Chief Financial 

Officer and Company Secretary. The Board reviews a compliance certificate issued by the 

Managing Director regarding compliance with the requirements of various Statutes, 

Regulations and Rules as may be applicable to the business of the Company. The 

Chairman of the Board and Company Secretary, in consultation with other concerned 

members of the senior management, finalizes the agenda for Board meetings. 

 

7. DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT/RE-APPOINTMENT: 

 

Mr. Pandoo Naig (DIN: 00158221), being longest in the office, retires by rotation at the 

ensuing Annual General Meeting. Mr. Pandoo Naig being eligible has offered himself for 

re-appointment. Brief resume of Mr. Pandoo Naig, Director seeking re-appointment is 

given with Annexure A of Notice. 

 

8. SKILLS/EXPERTISE/COMPETENCE  OF  THE  BOARD  OF  DIRECTORS: 

 

The Board is satisfied that the current composition reflects an appropriate mix of 

knowledge, skills, experience, expertise, diversity and independence. The Board provides 

leadership, strategic guidance, an objective and independent view to the Company’s 

management while discharging its fiduciary responsibilities, thereby ensuring that the 

management adheres to high standards of ethics, transparency and disclosure. The 

Board periodically evaluates the need for change in its composition and size. 

 

The Board has identified the following skills/expertise/competencies fundamental for 

the effective functioning of the Company which are currently available with the Board 

and Pursuant to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 

2015, a matrix chart setting out the core skills/expertise/competence of the Board is 

mentioned below: 

 
Sr. 

No. 

Skills/Expe

rtise/ 

Competenc

e 

Mr. Pandoo 

Naig 

Dr. Gautam 

Deshpande 

Dr. Sowmya 

Deshpande 

Dr. Rajnish 

Pandey 

Dr. 

Pratibha 

Walinjkar 

Dr. V. S. 

Mohan 

Dr. Gaurav 
Goyal 

Dr. 
Dhananjay 

Parikh 

1.  Business 

expertise 

√ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ 

2.  Strategy & 

Planning 

√ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ 

3.  Leadership √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ 

4.  Governance, √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ 
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Sr. 

No. 

Skills/Expe

rtise/ 

Competenc

e 

Mr. Pandoo 

Naig 

Dr. Gautam 

Deshpande 

Dr. Sowmya 

Deshpande 

Dr. Rajnish 

Pandey 

Dr. 

Pratibha 

Walinjkar 

Dr. V. S. 

Mohan 

Dr. Gaurav 
Goyal 

Dr. 
Dhananjay 

Parikh 

Risk and 

Compliance 

5.  Accounts, 

Audit & 

Finance 

√ √  √     

6.  Global 

Exposure 

√ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ 

7.  Stakeholder 

engagement 

√ √   √ √ √ √ 

8.  Government/ 

Regulatory 

√ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ 

 

 

9. FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: 

 

Pursuant to Regulation 25 (7) of the listing Regulation, the Company imparted various 

familiarization programme for its Directors. Your Company has put in place a structured 

induction and familiarization programmes for all its Independent Directors. The 

Company through such programme familiarizes the Independent Directors, with a brief 

background of the Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature 

of the industry in which the Company operates, business model, operations of the 

Company, etc. They are also informed of the important policies of the Company 

including the Code of Conduct for Board Members and Senior Management Personnel 

and the Code of Conduct to Regulate, Monitor and Report Trading by Insiders, etc. 

 

Pursuant to Regulation 46 the details required are available on the website of the 

Company at the web link: http://www.scandent.in/independentdirectorscode.pdf 

 

10. INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR’S MEETING: 

 

The Independent Director of your Company meets before the Board Meeting without the 

presence of the Non–Independent Director. These meeting are conducted in a flexible 

manner to enable the Independent Director to, inter-alia discuss matters pertaining to 

review the performance of Non Independent Director and the Board as a whole, review 

the performance of the Chairman of the Company (taking into account the views of the 

Executive and Non-Executive Directors), assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of 

flow of information between the Company Management and the Board that is necessary 

for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties. 

 

During the year, one meeting of the Independent Directors was held on February 12, 

2021. 
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11. CODE OF CONDUCT: 

 

As per Regulation 17 (5) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015, the Board has laid down a 

code of conduct for all Board members and senior management of the Company. The 

code of conduct is also posted on the website of the Company at the following link: 

http://www.scandent.in/codeofconduct.pdf. 

 

The members of the board and senior management personnel have affirmed the 

compliance with Code applicable to them during the year ended March 31, 2021. The 

annual report of the Company contains certificate by the CEO and Managing Director in 

terms of SEBI Listing Regulations on the compliance declarations received from 

Independent Directors, Non-executive Directors and Senior Management. 

 

12.  COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD: 

 

1. AUDIT COMMITTEE: 
 

The Audit Committee of the Company is duly constituted as per Regulation 18 of the SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, read with the 

provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. All the Members of the Audit 

Committee are financially literate and capable of analyzing Financial Statements of the 

Company. The constitution of the Audit Committee is in Compliance with the applicable 

laws. 

 

All the Members of the Committee have rich, vast experience in the field of finance, 

accounts, corporate laws and the business of the Company.  

 

Dr. Rajnish Pandey is the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee acts as 

a link between the Management, Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors and the Board of 

Directors and oversees the financial reporting process.  

 

The Statutory Auditor and the Internal Auditor may attend the meeting of the Audit 

Committee whenever they are invited. 

 

The term of reference of these committees are very wide and are in line with the 

regulatory requirement mandated by the act and part C of the Schedule II of the Listing 

Regulation. 

 

The terms of reference of the audit committee are broadly as under:  
 

1. Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its 

financial information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and 

credible. 

2. Recommendation for appointment, re-appointment, Remuneration and term of 

appointment of auditor of the Company. 
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3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the 

statutory auditors. 

4. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements before submission 

to the board for approval, with particular reference to: 

a. Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be 

included in the Board’s report in terms of section 134(3) (c) of the Companies 

Act, 2013. 

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same. 

c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment 

by management. 

d. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit 

findings. 

e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial 

statements. 

f. Disclosure of any related party transactions. 

g. Qualifications in the draft audit report. 
 

5. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before 

submission to the board for approval. 
 

6. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised 

through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of 

funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer 

document/prospectus/notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency 

monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making 

appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter. 
 

7. Review and monitor the auditors’ independence and performance, and effectiveness 

of audit process. 
 

8. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with 

related parties. 
 

9. Scrutiny of inter – corporate loans and investments. 
 

10.  Examination of the financial statement and the auditor report thereon. 
 

11. Evaluation of internal controls and risk management systems; 
 

12. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary; 

13. Establish a vigil mechanism for directors and employees to report genuine concerns 

manner as may be prescribed; 
 

14. Reviewing with the management, the performance of statutory and internal auditors, 

and adequacy of the internal control systems; 
 

15. The audit committee may call for the comments of the auditors about internal 

control systems, the scope of audit, including the observations of the auditors and 

review of financial statement before their submission to the Board and may also 
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discuss any related issues with the internal and statutory auditors and the 

management of the Company 
 

16. The audit committee shall review the information required as per SEBI Listing 

Regulations. 
 

17. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the 

Audit Committee. 
 

 In the Financial Year 2020-21 four audit committee meetings were held during the year 

and the gap between two meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days. The 

dates on which the said meetings were held are as follows July 31, 2020, September 15, 

2020, November 12, 2020 and February 12, 2021. The Chairman of the Audit Committee 

attended the 26th AGM of the Company held during the Financial Year 2019-20 i.e. on 

December 29, 2020. Minutes of the meetings of the Audit Committee are approved by 

the Chairman of the Committee in its next meeting and are noted and confirmed by the 

Board in the subsequent Board Meeting.  
 

The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings. 
 

The composition of the Audit committee and the details of meetings attended by its 

members are given below: 

 

Name Designation Category 
& 

Status 

No. of Meetings 
held during the 
financial year 
2020-21 

No. of Meetings 
Attended during 
the financial 
year    2020-21 

Dr. Rajnish Kumar 
Pandey 

Chairman Non Executive & 
Independent Director 

4 4 

Dr. Gautam 
Mohan Deshpande 

Member Managing Director 4 3 

Dr. Pratibha 
Walinjkar 

Member Non Executive & 
Independent Director 

4 2 

*Dr. Gaurav Goyal Member Non Executive & 
Independent Director 

4 3 

*Dr. Sowmya 
Deshpande 

Member Whole Time Director 4 1 

*Dr. Vaishali Sood Member Non Executive & 
Independent Director 

- - 

*Dr. Rahul Sathe Member Non Executive & Non 
Independent Director 

- - 

*Mr. Dhananjay 
Parikh 

Member Non Executive & Non 
Independent Director 

- - 

 * Dr. Sowmya Deshpande ceased to be a member of Audit Committee w.e.f April 26, 

2021. 

    * Dr. Gaurav Goyal ceased to be a member of Audit Committee w.e.f May 10, 2021. 

 * Dr. Vaishali Sood has been appointed as a member of Audit Committee w.e.f April 26, 

2021. 

    * Dr. Rahul Sathe has been appointed as a member of Audit Committee w.e.f June 29, 

2021. 
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 * Dr. Rahul Sathe ceased to be a member of Audit Committee w.e.f September 15, 2021 

 * Mr. Dhananjay Parikh has been appointed as a member of Audit Committee w.e.f 

September 15, 2021. 

 

 

2. STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 

 

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee of the Company is constituted in line with the 

provisions of Regulation 20 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, read with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

Terms of Reference of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee. 

 

The terms of reference of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee, inter alia, includes 

the following: 

 

 Resolving the grievances of the security holders including complaints related to 

transfer / transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of 

declared dividends, issue of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.; 
 

 Review of status of requests i.e. processing of complaints within statutory timelines; 

 

 Oversee of performance of Registrar and Transfer Agents; 

 

 Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders; 

 

 Review of adherence of the service standards adopted in respect of various services 

being rendered by the Registrar and Transfer Agents; 

 

 Review of the various measures and initiatives for reducing the quantum of 

unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual 

reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the Company. 

 

During the financial year under review, the Stakeholder Relations Committee met four (4) 

times follows July 31, 2020, September 15, 2020, November 12, 2020 and February 12, 

2021. The Chairman of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee attended the 26th 

AGM of the Company held during the Financial Year 2019-20 i.e. on December 29, 2020.  

 

The composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committees and the details of 

meetings attended by its members are given below: 
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Name Designation Status No. of 
Meetings held 
during the 
financial year 
2020-21 

No. of Meetings 
Attended 
during the 
financial year 
2020-21 

Dr. Rajnish Kumar 
Pandey 

Chairman Non- Executive & 
Independent Director 

4 4 

Dr. Pratibha 
Walinjkar 

Member Non – Executive & 
Independent Director 

4 2 

Dr. V. S. Mohan Member Non – Executive & Non 
Independent Director 

4 2 

*Dr. Gaurav Goyal Member Non – Executive & 
Independent Director 

4 3 

Mr. Pandoo Naig Member Non – Executive & Non 
Independent Director 

4 3 

*Dr. Vaishali Sood Member Non Executive & 
Independent Director 

- - 

*Dr. Rahul Sathe Member Non Executive & Non 
Independent Director 

- - 

*Mr. Dhananjay 
Parikh 

Member Non Executive & Non 
Independent Director 

- - 

 * Dr. Gaurav Goyal ceased to be a member of Stakeholders Relationship Committee w.e.f 

May 10, 2021. 

 * Dr. Vaishali Sood has been appointed as a member of Stakeholders Relationship 

Committee w.e.f April 26, 2021. 

    * Dr. Rahul Sathe has been appointed as a member of Stakeholders Relationship 

Committee w.e.f June 29, 2021. 

 * Dr. Rahul Sathe ceased to be a member of Stakeholders Relationship Committee w.e.f 

September 15, 2021. 

 * Mr. Dhananjay Parikh has been appointed as a member of Stakeholders Relationship 

Committee w.e.f September 15, 2021. 

 

Ms. Sheetal Musale, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer (appointed w.e.f 

31.08.2020), is responsible for the compliance with the requirements of the Securities 

Laws and SEBI Listing Regulations with the Stock Exchanges. 

 

During the year under review, the Company has not received any complaints; hence no 

complaints are pending as on March 31, 2021. A confirmation of the same has been 

received from the Registrar and transfer agent. 

 

Name, Designation and Address of Compliance Officer:- 
 

Ms. Sheetal Musale 

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 

Plot No. A 357, Road No. 26, Wagle Industrial Estate,  

MIDC, Thane (West) - 400604, Maharashtra. 

Tel no.: 022-25833205  

Web site: www.scandent.in  

Email id: cs@scandent.in 

http://www.scandent.in/
mailto:cs@scandent.in
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3. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 

 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is constituted in Compliance with the 

requirements of Regulation 19 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, read with the provisions of Section 178 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee recommends the 

nomination of Directors and carries out evaluation of performance of Individual 

Directors. Besides, it recommends remuneration for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 

and the Senior Management of the Company. 

 

Terms of Reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as follows:  

 

The terms of reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee (‘NRC’), inter alia, 

includes the following: 

 

 Identification of persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be 

appointed at Senior Management position in accordance with the criteria laid down, 

and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal; 

 Recommendation for fixation and revision of remuneration packages of Managing 

Director and Executive Directors to the Board for review and approval; 

 Formulation of criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and 

independence of a Director and recommending to the Board a policy, relating to the 

remuneration for the Directors, key managerial personnel and other employees; 

 Formulation of criteria for evaluation of every Director and carry out performance 

evaluation of Directors; 

 Devising a policy on Board diversity; 

 Extension or continuation of term of appointment of the Independent Director, on 

the basis of the report of performance evaluation of the Independent Directors. 

 Recommend to the Board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to Senior 

Management. 

 

Meetings: 

 

The committee met thrice during the year under review. The committee meeting was 

held on the following dates September 15, 2020 and February 12, 2021. As per Section 

178(7) of the Act and Secretarial Standards, the Chairman of the Committee or, in his 

absence, any other Member of the Committee authorized by him in this behalf shall 

attend the General Meetings of the Company.  
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The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committees and the details of 

meeting attended by its members are given below; 

 

Name Designation Status No. of 
Meetings held 
during the 
financial year 
2020-21 

No. of Meetings 
Attended 
during the 
financial year 
2020-21 

Dr. Pratibha 
Walinjkar 

Chairman 
 

Non – Executive & 
Independent Director 

2 1 

Dr. Rajnish 
Kumar Pandey 

Member Non – Executive & 
Independent Director 

2 2 

Dr. V. S. Mohan Member Non – Executive & Non 
Independent Director 

2 1 

*Mr. Pandoo 
Naig 

Member Non – Executive & Non 
Independent Director 

2 2 

*Dr. Gaurav 
Goyal 

Member Non – Executive & 
Independent Director 

2 2 

*Dr. Vaishali 
Sood 

Member Non Executive & 
Independent Director 

- - 

*Dr. Rajeev 
Singh 

Member Non Executive & Non 
Independent Director 

- - 

  

 * Dr. Pandoo Naig ceased to be a member of Nomination and Remuneration Committees 

w.e.f April 26, 2021 

 * Dr. Gaurav Goyal ceased to be a member of Nomination and Remuneration Committees 

w.e.f May 10, 2021 

 * Dr. Vaishali Sood have been appointed as a member of Nomination and Remuneration 

Committees w.e.f April 26, 2021 

    * Dr. Rajeev Singh have been appointed as a member of Nomination and Remuneration 

Committees w.e.f June 29, 2021 

 

Performance Evaluation Criteria for Independent Directors: 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company carried out an Annual Evaluation of its own 

performance, Performance of its Committees, and Individual Directors pursuant to the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The performance evaluation was conducted through 

structured questionnaires which covered various aspects such as the Board / Committee 

Composition, Structure, Effectiveness and Contribution to Board / Committee processes, 

adequacy, appropriateness and timeliness of information and the overall functioning of 

the Board / Committees etc. The Individual Director’s response to the questionnaire on 

the performance of the Board, Committee(s), Individual Directors and the Chairman, was 

analysed. The Directors were satisfied with the evaluation process. 
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In compliance with Regulation 19 read with Part D of Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board of Directors has 

formulated criteria for evaluation of the Company’s Independent Directors’ performance. 

The performance evaluation of Independent Directors is carried out on the basis of their 

role and responsibilities, effective participation in the Board and Committee meetings, 

expertise, skills and exercise of independent judgment in major decisions of the 

Company. 

 

Remuneration Policy  

 

Remuneration policy in the Company is designed to create a high performance culture. 

The policy on nomination and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 

(KMP), Senior Management and other employees of the Company had been formulated by 

the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company and approved by the 

Board of Directors. The policy acts as a guideline for determining, inter-alia, 

qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director, matters relating to the 

remuneration, appointment, removal and evaluation of performance of the Directors, 

Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and other employees. 

 

The aforesaid Policy has also been posted on the Company’s website on 

http://www.scandent.in/nominationpolicy.pdf 

 

4. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE: 

 

Regulation 21 of the Listing Regulations mandates constitution of the Risk Management 

Committee. The Committee is required to lay down the procedures to inform to the 

Board about the risk assessment and minimization procedures and the Board shall be 

responsible for framing, implementing and monitoring   the Risk Management Plan of 

the Company.  

 

The Composition of the Risk Management Committee is given below: 

Name Designation Status No. of Meetings 
held during the 
financial year 
2020-21 

No. of Meetings 
Attended during 
the financial 
year 2020-21 

Dr. Gautam 
Mohan 
Deshpande 

Chairman Managing Director 2 1 

Dr. Rajnish 
Kumar Pandey 

Member Non – Executive & 
Independent Director 

2 2 

Dr. Pratibha 
Walinjkar 

Member Non – Executive & 
Independent Director 

2 - 

* Dr. Gaurav 
Goyal 

Member Non – Executive & 
Independent Director 

2 2 

Mr. Pandoo Naig Member Managing Director - - 

*Dr. Rajeev Singh Member Non Executive & Non 
Independent Director 

- - 

http://www.scandent.in/nominationpolicy.pdf
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 * Dr. Gaurav Goyal ceased to be a member of Risk Committees w.e.f May 10, 2021 

 * Dr. Rajeev Singh have been appointed as a member of Risk Committees w.e.f June 29, 

2021 

 

One meeting was held on November 12, 2020 and February 12, 2021 during the financial 

year 2020-21. The Board of Directors has adopted Risk Management Policy which is 

posted on the Company’s website on 

http://www.scandent.in/riskmanagementpolicy.pdf. The roles and responsibilities of the 

Risk Management Committee shall be such as may be stated in the Risk Management 

Policy. 

 

5. DIRECTORS REMUNERATION: 

 

Managing Director and Whole Time Director: 

 

Details of remuneration paid/payable to directors during 2020-21 are provided in an 

(MGT-7 Annual Return) and weblink is provided in Point No. 14 of the Board’s Report. 

 

Non Executive Directors 

 

The Non Executive Directors are entitled for sitting fees of the Board/ Committee 

Meeting. The Company’s Non Executive Directors are paid sitting fees of Rs. 10, 000/- for 

Board Meeting in the each Quarter and Rs. 5,000/- for Committee Meeting in the each 

Quarter attended by them irrespective of the number of Board/ Committee Meetings 

held in each Quarter. 

 

13. SUBSIDIARY: 

 

The Company does not have any subsidiary Company. 

 

14. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS: 

 

a) Annual General Meeting 

 

The Particulars of Annual General Meeting held during the last three years are as follows: 

Financial 
Year 

Date & Time Venue Special 
Resolution 

Details of Special Resolution 
passed 

2017-18 August 29, 
2018 at 12.00 
noon 

A-357, Road No. 26, 
Wagle Industrial 
Estate, MIDC, Thane 
(West) - 400604, 
Maharashtra. 

Yes  Revision of Remuneration of        
Dr. Sowmya Gautam Deshpande, 
Whole Time Director of the 
Company. 

 Revision of Remuneration of        
Dr. Gautam Deshpande, a 
Managing Director of the 
Company. 

http://www.scandent.in/riskmanagementpolicy.pdf
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a) Extra Ordinary General Meeting 

 

During the year under review 2020-21, no Extra Ordinary General Meeting was held by 

the Members of the Company. 

 

b) Details of Special Resolution passed through Postal Ballot: 

  None of the resolutions were passed through Postal Ballot. 

 

 

15. DISCLOSURES: 

 

Disclosure of accounting treatment in preparation of financial statements: 

 

The Company has followed all relevant Accounting Standards notified by the Companies 

(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 while preparing Financial Statements for 2020-

21. 

 

Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties and strictures imposed on the 

Company by Stock Exchanges or SEBI, or any other statutory authority, on any matter 

related to capital markets during last three years.  

 

The Company was issued notice by the BSE Limited in the month of August, 2020 

imposing penalty of Rs. 5,36,900/- for the quarter ended 30th June, 2020 and Rs. 

4,48,400/- imposed for the quarter ended 30th September, 2020 for delay  in compliance 

of Regulation 17(1)(c ) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 relating to non-appointment 

of six directors on the board of the Company since the Company is included in the list of 

top 2000 listed entities as per market capitalization.  

 

The Company had applied for waiver of fine levied under SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

The BSE Limited had accepted our waiver application on in the month of April 2021 and 

waiver was granted. 

 

 

2018-19 September 20, 
2019 at 12.00 
noon 

Brahman Seva 
Sangha, 19, Brahman 
Society, Opposite, 
Late Divakar Ganesh 
Gangal Rd, Naupada,  
Thane West – 
400602, Maharashtra. 

Yes  Re-appointment of Dr. Rajnish 
Kumar Pandey (DIN: 01096119) as 
an Independent Director of the 
Company. 

2019-20 December 29, 
2021 at 01.30 
noon 

Through Video 
Conferencing (“VC”) / 
Other Audio Visual 
Means (“OAVM”) 

 NIL 
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Except for this, there were no non-compliances by the Company and no instances of 

penalties and strictures imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchange or SEBI or any 

other statutory authority on any matter related to the capital market during the last three 

years. 

 

Compliance Certificate 

 

The MD and CFO have certified to the Board with regard to the financial statements and 

other matters as required under regulation 17(8), read with Part B of Schedule II to the 

SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015. 

 

Report on Corporate Governance 
 

This chapter, read together with the information given in the Directors’ Report and the 

chapters on Management Discussion and Analysis and General Shareholder Information, 

constitute the compliance report on Corporate Governance during 2020-21. The Company 

has been regularly submitting the quarterly compliance report to the stock exchanges as 

required under Regulation 27 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.   

 

Certificate on Corporate Governance 
 

The Company has obtained the certificate from Practising Company Secretary regarding 

compliance with the provisions relating to Corporate Governance laid down in Part E of 

Schedule V to the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015. This certificate is annexed to the 

Directors' Report and will be sent to the stock exchanges, along with the Annual Report to 

be filed by the Company. 

 

Compliance of mandatory Requirements 
 

1.  Mandatory 
 

Your Company has complied with all the requirements of regulatory authorities. During 

the last three years, there were no instances of non-compliance by the Company and no 

penalty or strictures were imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges or SEBI or 

any statutory authority, on any matter related to the capital markets. 

 

2. Discretionary 
 

The Company has also complied with the discretionary requirements as under: 
 

The Board: 

Since the Company has an executive Chairman, the requirement regarding non-

executive Chairman is not applicable to the Company. 
 

Separate posts of Chairperson and Managing Director & Chief Financial Officer 

The Company has appointed separate persons to the post of Chairman and Managing 

Director. 
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Reporting of Internal Auditor 

The Internal Auditor reports directly to the Audit Committee. 

 

16. WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/VIGIL MECHANISM: 

 

The Company has formulated a Whistle Blower Policy. The policy comprehensively 

provides an opportunity for any employee of the Company to raise and report any issue 

or any act resulting in financial or reputation loss and misuse of office or suspected or 

actual fraud. The policy has been communicated to the employees and the same is 

uploaded in the Company’s website i.e. http://www.scandent.in/policies.html. 

 

17. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION: 

 

Your Company, from time to time and as may be required, Communicates with its 

security-holders and investors through multiple channels of communications such as 

dissemination of information on the website of the Stock Exchanges, Press Releases, the 

Annual Reports and uploading relevant information on its website. The Quarterly results 

of the Company are regularly submitted to the Stock Exchange where the shares of the 

Company are listed. Subsequently the results are also published in the one English 

Newspaper “Business Standard” and one Regional Newspaper “Mumbai Lakshadweep”. 
 

Your Company discloses to the Stock Exchanges, all information required to be disclosed 

under Regulation 30 read with Part ‘A’ and Part ‘B’ of Schedule III of the Listing 

Regulations including material information having a bearing on the 

performance/operations of the Company and other price sensitive information.  

 

The Quarterly results of the Company are also uploaded on the website of the Company 

at http://www.scandent.in/financial-results.html after their declaration. 

 

 

18. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION: 

 

a) Annual General Meeting 

Date                  : September 30, 2021 

Time                 : 03.00 Noon 

Venue               : through Video Conferencing / Other Audio Visual Means (VC) /             

                          (OAVM) 

 

b) Financial year of the Company: 

 

The financial year covers the period from April 1 to March 31. 

 

 

 

http://www.scandent.in/policies.html
http://www.scandent.in/financial-results.html
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c) Financial Calendar:  

 

Results for first Quarter On or before  August 14, 2021 

Results for second Quarter On or before  November 14, 2021 

Results for third Quarter On or before  February  14, 2022 

Results for fourth Quarter and  Annual On or before  May 30, 2022 

Annual General Meeting for the year 

2020-21 

On or before  September 30, 2021 

 

d) Date of Book Closure:  

 

The register of members and share transfer books of the Company will remain closed 

from September 24, 2021 to September 30, 2021 (both days inclusive). 

 

e) Dividend Payment Date: 

 

No dividend has been recommended for the Financial Year ended 2020-2021. 

 

f) Listing on Stock Exchange: 

 

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on the BSE Limited (BSE), P. J. Tower, 

Dalal Street, Mumbai – 400 001, Maharashtra . Listing Fee as applicable have been 

Paid. 

 

g) Stock Code: 

 

            BSE Limited: 516110 

            ISIN Demat No. INE146N01016 

    

h) Corporate Identification Number (CIN):   L93000MH1994PLC080842. 

 

i) Registered office address: 

 

A-357, Road No. 26, Wagle Industrial Estate, MIDC, Thane (West) Thane - 400604. 

 

j) Market Price Data - High, Low during each month in last financial year: 

 

BSE HIGH AND LOW PRICE AS ON 

APRIL 2020 – MARCH 2021 

BSE SENSEX 

Month Open High Low Close High Low Close 

April 

2020 

11 11.55 11 11.55 

33887.25 27500.79 33717.62 

May 2020 12.12 13.23 12.12 13.03 32845.48 29968.45 32424.1 

June 2020 13.66 14.33 9.5 11.34 35706.55 32348.1 34915.8 
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BSE HIGH AND LOW PRICE AS ON 

APRIL 2020 – MARCH 2021 

BSE SENSEX 

Month Open High Low Close High Low Close 

July 2020 11.34 13.02 9.36 9.36 38617.03 34927.2 37606.89 

Aug 2020 9.36 9.82 5.37 5.94 40010.17 36911.23 38628.29 

Sept 2020 5.93 8.67 5.55 7.45 39359.51 36495.98 38067.93 

Oct 2020 7.08 7.08 5.5 6.26 41048.05 38410.2 39614.07 

Nov 2020 6.57 8.25 5.94 8.18 44825.37 39334.92 44149.72 

Dec 2020 8.44 11.2 8.44 11.2 47896.97 44118.1 47751.33 

Jan 2021 11.72 14.7 11.2 14.61 50184.01 46160.46 46285.77 

Feb 2021 14.7 17.76 14.7 16.4 52516.76 46433.65 49099.99 

Mar 2021 16.4 16.5 13.8 15.5 51821.84 48236.35 49509.15 

 

k) Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA): 

 

 Name and Address:   Purva Sharegistry (India) Pvt. Ltd. 

     Unit no. 9, Shiv Shakti Ind. Estt.,  

     J .R. Boricha Marg, Opp. Kasturba Hospital Lane, 

     Lower Parel (E), Mumbai 400011.  

 Tel:     91-22-2301 6761 / 8261 

         Fax:    91-22-2301 2517 

         Email:   support@purvashare.com 

 

 

l) Share Transfer Mechanism: 

 

The share transfers received are processed through Registrar and Share Transfer Agent 

(RTA) within 15 days from the date of receipt, subject to the documents being valid and 

complete in all respects. The share certificates duly endorsed are returned immediately 

to the shareholders by RTA. The details of transfers/transmission so approved, is placed 

before the Stakeholders Relationship Committee for its confirmation. The Stakeholders 

Relationship Committee meets as and when required to inter alia consider the other 

transfer proposals, requests for issue of duplicate share certificates, attend to 

Shareholders’ grievances, etc. 

 

m) Shareholding Pattern as on March 31, 2021: 

 

(i) Distribution of Shares as on March 31, 2021: 

 

Shareholding 

of Nominal 

Value 

No. of 

Sharehol

ders 

% to 

total 

In Rs. % to 

total 

No of shares 

held 

Upto 5000 3736 97.46 81,29,640 2.53% 8,12,964 

5001 – 10000 30 0.78 24,67,770 0.77% 2,46,777 

mailto:support@purvashare.com
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Shareholding 

of Nominal 

Value 

No. of 

Sharehol

ders 

% to 

total 

In Rs. % to 

total 

No of shares 

held 

10001 – 20000 11 0.29 17,77,680 0.55% 1,77,768 

20001 – 30000 7 0.18 18,77,000 0.58% 1,87,700 

30001 – 40000 8 0.21 27,15,490 0.85% 2,71,549 

40001 – 50000 7 0.18 31,94,170 1.00% 3,19,417 

50001 – 

100000 

23 0.60 2,12,64,000 6.62% 21,26,400 

100001 and 

above 

11 0.29 27,95,74,250 87.09% 2,79,57,425 

Total 3833 100 32,10,00,000 100 3,21,00,000 

 

 

 

 

 

(ii) Categories of Equity shareholders as on March 31, 2021: 

 

  Category No. of 

Shares 

Shareholding % 

(A)  Promoter & Promoter Group 

 

Individuals/Hindu Undivided Family 

16447400 51.24 

  Total (A) 16447400 51.24 

(B) (1) Public Shareholding (Institutions) 

Mutual  Funds/ UTI 

 

Financial Institutions / Banks 

 

2400 

 

46500 

 

0.01 

 

0.14 

  Sub-Total (B)(1) 48900 0.15 

(B) (2) Public Shareholding (Non-

institutions) 

 

  

 (a) Bodies Corporate 2423247 7.55 

 (b) Individuals  12900615 40.19 

 ©  NRI (Repat. & Non Repat.) 43100 0.13 

 (d) Hindu Undivided Family   203562 0.63 

 (e) Clearing Members 581 0.00 

 (f) Others – LLP 32595 0.10 

  Sub – Total (B) (2)  15603700 48.61 

  Total Public Shareholding  

(B)= (B)(1)+(B)(2) 

15652600 48.76 

  Total (A + B)  32100000 100 

 

n) Plant Locations:  Not Applicable. 
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19. DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES: 

 

The Equity Shares of the Company are to be traded compulsorily in Dematerialized form. 

As on 31st March 2021, 30988300 Equity Shares (Constituting approx. 96.53%) were in 

dematerialized form. The Company has entered into agreements with the National 

Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and the Central Depository Services (India) Limited 

(CDSL) for this purpose. 

 

20. OUTSTANDING GDRS/ADRS/WARRANTS OR ANY CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS: 
 

The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments. 

Disclosures with respect to demat suspense account/unclaimed suspense account. The 

Company does not have any shares in the demat suspense account/unclaimed suspense 

account. 

 

21. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT: 
 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of this Annual Report. 

 

22. DISCLOSURE OF TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES: 

 

During the Financial Year 2020-21, there were no materially significant transactions or 

arrangements entered into between the Company and its Promoters, Directors or their 

Relatives or the Management, Subsidiaries, etc. that may have potential conflict with the 

interests of the Company at large. Further, details of related party transactions are 

presented in Note No. 27 to Annual Accounts in the Annual Report. 

 

23. ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 

 

The Company has followed the Indian Accounting Standards, the Generally Accepted 

Accounting Principles in India, provision of the Act and Rules framed thereunder. 

 

24. DETAILS OF NON-COMPLIANCE RELATING TO CAPITAL MARKETS: 

 

The Company has complied with all the requirements of regulatory authorities with 

respect to capital markets. There were no instances of non-compliances by the Company 

and no penalties or strictures were imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges or 

SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related to the capital markets during the 

year under review. 

 

25. CODE FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING PRACTICES: 

 

The Company had adopted a comprehensive Code of Conduct for prevention of insider 

trading for its Directors and designated persons. The Code lays down guidelines, 

through which it advises the designated persons or directors on procedures to be 
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followed and disclosures to be made, while dealing with securities of the Company and 

cautions them of the consequences of violations. 

 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 

2015 (hereinafter referred to as “the Regulations”) replaced the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992 w.e.f 15th May, 2015. 

The Regulations requires every listed Company to formulate and publish on its official 

website, a code of practices and procedures for fair disclosure of unpublished price 

sensitive information that it would follow in order to adhere to each of the principles set 

out in Schedule A to these Regulations. 

 

In Compliance with the said requirements, the Company has introduced a Code of 

Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information 

(“UPSI") (hereinafter referred to as the “Code”). 
This Code was revised by the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 

29th May, 2019 pursuant to Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of 

Insider Trading) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018 and Securities and Exchange Board of 

India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) (Amendment) Regulations, 2019 and shall be 

effective w.e.f 1st April, 2019. 

 

26. RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL: 

 

A qualified practicing Company Secretary carried out a share capital audit to reconcile 

the total admitted equity share capital with the National Securities Depository Limited 

(“NSDL”) and the Central Depository Services (India) Limited (“CDSL”) and the total 

issued and listed equity share capital. The audit report confirms that the total issued / 

paid-up capital is in agreement with the total number of shares in physical form and the 

total number of dematerialized shares held with NSDL and CDSL.  

 

DECLARATION BY THE MANAGING DIRECTOR UNDER THE SECURITIES AND 

EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (LISTING OBLIGATION AND DISCLOSURE 

REQUIREMENT) REGULATION, 2016   

 

I, Mr. Pandoo Naig, Managing Director of Scandent Imaging Limited hereby declare that 

all the members of the Board of Directors of the Company and the Senior Management 

Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct for the year ended 31st 

March 2021. 
 

Sd/- 

 Mr. Pandoo Naig 

  Managing Director  

       DIN: 00158221 

 

Date: November 8, 2021  

Place: Thane                                                                                
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CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 

[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V (E) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015] 

 

To  

The Members of  

Scandent Imaging Limited 

A-357, Road No.26, 

Wagle Industrial Estate, 

MIDC, 

Thane (West) – 400604. 

 

We have examined the compliance of conditions of the Corporate Governance by Scandent 

Imaging Limited (CIN: L93000MH1994PLC080842)) (the Company), for the year ended on  31st 

March 2021, as stipulated under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015. 

 

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the 

management. Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, 

adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate 

Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of 

the Company. 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 

us, and based on the representations made by the Directors and the management we certify 

that the Company has complied with all the mandatory Requirement of the Corporate 

Governance as stipulated in the aforesaid Listing Agreement/Listing Regulations, 2015 as 

applicable. 

 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 

Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the 

affairs of the Company. 

 
 

Signature: 

Ajay Kumar 

(Ajay Kumar & Co.) 

Practicing Company 

Secretary 

Place: Mumbai                                 FCS No: 3399 

Date: September 1, 2021        COP No: 2944 

UDIN: F003399C000872729 

 



 

                                                                             

27th Annual Report 2020-21 Page 81 

 

CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATION 

 

To, 

The Board of Directors, 

Scandent Imaging Limited. 

 

We, Gautam Deshpande, Chief Executive Officer  and Amit Tyagi, Chief Financial Officer of 

Scandent Imaging Limited hereby certify to the Board that: 
 

a. We have reviewed the Financial Statements and the Cash Flow Statements for the year 

2020-21 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief : 
 

i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material 

fact or contains statements that might be misleading. 
 

ii) These statements together present a true and fair view of Companies affair and are in 

Compliance with existing Accounting Standards, Applicable Laws and Regulations. 
 

b. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the 

Company during the year, 2020-21 which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the 

Company’s code of conduct. 
 

c. We are responsible for establishing and maintaining the internal controls for the 

Financial Reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control 

systems of the Company pertaining to the financial reporting and we have not come 

across any reportable discrepancies in the design or operation of such internal control. 
 

d. We hereby declare that all the members of the Board of Directors and Management 

Committee have confirmed Compliance with the code of conduct as adopted by the 

Company. 
 

e. We  have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee 

(i) that there are no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting 

during the year; 

(ii) that there are no significant changes in accounting policies during the year . 

(iii)that there are no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware. 

 

               For Scandent Imaging Limited 

      

 

                                                       Sd/-   Sd/-                                   

Place: Thane                 Gautam Deshpande             Amit Tyagi                                

Date: November 8, 2021                 Chief Executive Officer       Chief Financial Officer 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

 

To the Members of 

SCANDENT IMAGING LIMITED 

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements 

 

 

Opinion 

 

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of SCANDENT IMAGING 

LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the 

Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income) the Statement of 

Changes in Equity and the statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended on that date, and 

a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.  

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 

us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies 

Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity 

with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other 

accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 

March 31, 2021, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash 

flows for the year ended on that date. 

 

Basis for Opinion 

 

We conducted audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 

Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those 

Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 

Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 

accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

(ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 

financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made 

thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 

requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial 

statements. 

 

Key Audit Matters: 

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report. 
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other 

information. The other information comprises the information included in the Management 

Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business 

Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not 

include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the 

financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 

assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our 

responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other 

information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 

obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, 

based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 

this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 

regard. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of 

the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial 

statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position), profit or 

loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income), cash flows and changes 

in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in 

India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of 

the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and 

for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 

appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 

prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 

controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 

accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial 

statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether 

due to fraud or error. 

 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 

going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 

intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to 

do so.  

 

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting 

process. 
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Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 

auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 

but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 

material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also  

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 

those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 

from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of 

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. 

 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 

exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the 

related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 

to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 

to the date of our report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 

Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually 

or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 

knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative 

materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in 

evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 

misstatements in the financial statements. 
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  

 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on Our 

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

 

A. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by 

the Central Government of India in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the 

Annexure “A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the 

Order. 

 

B. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 

best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 
 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 
 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive 

Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with 

by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian 

Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of 

the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the 

Company as on March 31, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of 

the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a 

director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 

reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to 

our separate Report in “Annexure B”. 
 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 

accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: In our 

opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 

to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in 

accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. 
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(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our 

opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 

to us: 

i. The Company did not have any pending litigation as at 31st March 2021.  

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative 

contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the 

Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

 

For M. B. AGRAWAL & CO. 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No.: 100137W 

 

Sd/- 

(M. B. Agrawal) 

PARTNER 

Membership No.: 009045 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: June 29, 2021  

UDIN: 009045AAAABQ8547 
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report 

(Referred to in paragraph A under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 
section of our report of even date) 

 

 

i) In respect of its Fixed Assets: 

 

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including 

quantitative details and situation of fixed assets on the basis of available 

information. 

 

(b) As explained to us, all the assets have been physically verified by the management 

in a phased periodical manner, which in our opinion is reasonable having regard 

to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies 

were noticed on such verification. 

 

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of our records of the company, the company owns no immovable 

properties and hence reporting under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the said Order is not 

applicable to the company.  

 

ii) In respect of its Inventories: 

 

The Company has maintained proper records for physical verification of inventory and 

the physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the 

management and there were no material discrepancies were noticed on physical 

verification.  

 

iii) The Company has not granted loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited 

liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 

189 of the Companies Act 2013 and the same is not prejudice interest of the Company, 

interest and principle where applicable are repaying the parties and there is no 

outstanding dues more than 90 days as on 31st March, 2021. 

 

iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantee or security   to the parties 

covered under Sections 185of the Act.  The Company has complied with the provisions of 

Section 186 of the Act with respect to making investments and providing guarantees and 

securities, as applicable. 

 

v) The Company has not accepted any deposit from public. We are informed by the 

management that no order has been passed by the Company Law Board or National 

Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other Tribunal. 
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vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under 

section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the 

Company. Thus reporting under clause 3(vi) of the order is not applicable to the 

Company. 

 

vii) In respect of its Statutory Dues: 

 

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory 

dues, including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, 

Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues 

applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.  However the Company has  

defaulted in payment of TDS on due dates  

 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and audit 

procedures performed by us, undisputed dues in respect of, income tax, duty 

of custom, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues which were 

outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the 

date they became payable, are as follows 

 

Statement of arrears of statutory dues outstanding for more than six months 

 

Name of the 

Statute 

Nature of the 

Dues 

Amount 

(Rs) 

Due date Date of 

Payment   

Amount Rema

rks if 

any 

Tax 

Deducted at 

Source 

194H- 

Commission/ 

Brokerage 

35319 07/10/2020 Not Paid Not Paid  

Tax 

Deducted at 

Source 

194A- Interest 673360 07/04/2020 22-12-20 

 

88,806  

194A- 

Interest 

194A- Interest 30741 07/07/2020 Not paid Not Paid  

Tax 

Deducted at 

source 

194A- Interest 33655 07/10/2020 Not paid Not paid  

Tax 

Deducted at 

source 

194J-

Professional/ 

Technical fees 

2686638 07/04/2020 Not paid 

 

Not paid  
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(c) According to the records of the company, there are no dues outstanding in 

respect of Income-Tax, Sales-Tax, Service Tax, custom duty, excise duty, value 

added tax and cess on account of any dispute.  

 

viii) The Company has not obtained any loan from any financial institutions. However 

loans obtained from banks and the same has been utilized for the purpose for which 

obtained. 

 

ix) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial offer or further public offer or 

term loan and accordingly Clause 3(ix) of the Order is not applicableto the Company. 

 

x) On the basis of our examination and according to the information and explanations given 

to us, no fraud on or by the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or 

reported during the year. 

 

xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company has paid/provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite 

approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. 

 

 

xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company is not a Nidhi Company and accordingly Clause 3(xii) of the Order is not 

applicable. 

 

 

xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where 

applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party 

transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable 

accounting standards. 

 

 

xiv) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 

placement of shares or fully or partly paid convertible debentures and hence reporting 

under clause 3 (xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.  

 

 

xv) According to information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of 

the records of the company, during the year the Company has not entered into any non-

cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected to its directors and hence 

provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 
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xvi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the 

Company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of 

India Act, 1934. 

 

 

 

For M. B. AGRAWAL & CO. 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No.: 100137W 

 

Sd/- 

(M. B. Agrawal) 

PARTNER 

Membership No.: 009045 

 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: June 29, 2021 

UDIN: 009045AAAABQ8547 
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Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditors’ Report 

(Referred to under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our 

report of even date) 
 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of 

Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) 
 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of SCANDENT 

IMAGING LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of 

the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 
 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 

financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 

by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the ‘Guidance Note’). These responsibilities 

include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 

that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 

including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 

and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 

records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 

Act. 
 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s internal financial controls over 

financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 

Standards on Auditing as specified under Section 143 (10) of the Act and the Guidance Note, 

to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those standards and the 

Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 

audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate Internal financial controls over 

financial reporting were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively 

in all material respects. 
 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 

the internal financial control system over financial reporting and their operating 

effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 

obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 

the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 

effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend 

on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 

the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 

a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial 

reporting. 



 

                                                                             

27th Annual Report 2020-21 Page 92 

 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 

preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial 

reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 

records, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of 

the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 

as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with the generally 

accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 

made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on 

the financial statements. 
 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 

misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 

evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are 

subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 

inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 

policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 

controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 

reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over 

financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 

components of internal controls stated in the Guidance Note. 

 

 

For M. B. AGRAWAL & CO. 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No.: 100137W 

 

Sd/- 

(M. B. Agrawal) 

PARTNER 

Membership No.: 009045 

 

 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: June 29, 2021 

UDIN: 009045AAAABQ8547 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021 

1 Corporate Information 

Scandent Imaging Limited (“the Company”) is a listed entity incorporated in India. 

The address of its registered office at Plot No. A357, Road No. 26, Wagle Industrial 

Estate, MIDC, Thane West – 400604. It is primarily engaged in the business of 

Healthcare Services. 

 

2 Significant Accounting Policies 

 Basis of Preparation, measurement and significant accounting policies 

  

2.1  Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements 

 

(i) Statement of Compliance  

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian 

Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs under 

the companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and subsequent 

amendments thereof as well as with the additional requirements applicable to 

financial statements as set forth Companies Act, 2013 and amended thereof.  

 

(ii) Basis of measurement 

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and on 

accrual method of accounting. Historical cost is used in preparation of the 

financial statements except as otherwise mentioned in the policy. 

 

(iii) Functional and presentation Currency 

The financial statements are prepared in INR, which is the Company’s functional 

currency. 

 

(iv) Use of Estimates and Judgements 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires 

management to make judgement estimates and assumptions that affect the 

application of accounting policies and the reported amount of assets and 

liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates 

and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively. 

 

 Summary of significant accounting policies  

2.2 Current and Non-Current Classification 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ 

non-current classification.  An asset is treated as current when it is: 

i. Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal 

operating cycle 

ii. Held primarily for the purpose of trading, 
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iii. Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting year other 

than for (i) above, or 

iv. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to 

settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting year. 

 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

 

A liability is current when: 

i. It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 

ii. It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 

iii. It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting year other than 

for (i) above, or 

iv. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at 

least twelve months after the reporting year. 

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 

 

2.3 Fair Value Measurement 

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at 

each balance sheet date. 

 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a 

liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement 

date.  

 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market 

participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest 

and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in 

its highest and best use. 

 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances 

and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use 

of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. 

 

The Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of 

three levels as follows: 

 

 Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) 

This hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.  

 

 Level 2  

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are 

observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.  

Level 2 inputs include the following:  
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a) Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets.  

b) Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are 

not active.  

c) Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability. 

d) Market – corroborated inputs. 

 

 Level 3  

They are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability reflecting significant 

modifications to observable related market data or Company’s assumptions about 

pricing by market participants. Fair values are determined in whole or in part 

using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by 

prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor 

are they based on available market data.  

 

2.4  Non-Current Assets Held for Sale 

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the 

lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.  

 

2.5      Property Plant and Equipment 

Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets are not depreciated or amortized 

once classified as held for sale. 

 

PPE are stated at actual cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss. 

Actual cost is inclusive of freight, installation cost, duties, taxes and other incidental 

expenses for bringing the asset to its working conditions for its intended use (net of 

recoverable taxes) and any cost directly attributable to bring the asset into the 

location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner 

intended by the Management. It includes professional fees and borrowing costs for 

qualifying assets. 

 

Significant Parts of an item of PPE (including major inspections) having different 

useful lives and material value or other factors are accounted for as separate 

components. All other repairs and maintenance costs are recognized in the statement 

of profit and loss as incurred. 

 

Depreciation of these PPE commences when the assets are ready for their intended 

use. 

 

  Depreciation is provided for on straight line method on the basis of useful life. 

The useful life of property, plant and equipment are as follows:- 
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Asset Class 
Useful Life in 

years 

Vehicles 8 

Plant & Machinery  13 

Plant & Machinery (General) 15 

Plant & Machinery (Equipment) 7 

Office Equipments 5 

Computers & Printers 3 

Air Conditioners 5 

Furniture & Fixtures 10 

 

On assets acquired on lease (including improvements to the leasehold premises), 

amortization has been provided for on Straight Line Method over the period of lease.  

 

The estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed on an annual basis and if 

necessary, changes in estimates are accounted for prospectively. 

 

Depreciation on subsequent expenditure on PPE arising on account of capital 

improvement or other factors is provided for prospectively over the remaining useful 

life. 

 

An item of PPE is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits 

are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on 

the disposal or retirement of an item of PPE is determined as the difference between 

the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the 

Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 

2.6 Intangible Assets 

Intangible assets are stated at cost (net of recoverable taxes) less accumulated 

amortization and impairment loss. Intangible assets are amortized over their 

respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis, from the date that 

they are available for use. The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset 

is based on a number of factors including the effects of obsolescence, demand, 

competition, and other economic factors (such as the stability of the industry, and 

known technological advances), and the level of maintenance expenditures required to 

obtain the expected future cash flows from the asset. Amortization methods and 

useful lives are reviewed periodically including at each financial year end. 

 

Depreciation on subsequent expenditure on intangible assets arising on account of 

capital improvement or other factors is provided for prospectively over the remaining 

useful life. 
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The estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed on an annual basis and if 

necessary, changes in estimates are accounted for prospectively. 

 

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits 

are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an 

intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and 

the carrying amount of the asset, and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and 

Loss when the asset is derecognized. 

 

  Financial Instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity 

and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity 

 

2.7 Financial Assets 

 Initial Recognition and Measurement 

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial 

assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are 

attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial 

assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame are recognized on the trade 

date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. 

 

 Subsequent Measurement 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following 

categories based on business model of the entity: 

 Financial Assets at Amortized Cost 

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business 

model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash 

flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates 

to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal 

amount outstanding. 

 

 Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income 

(FVTOCI) 

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model 

whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling 

financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on 

specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest 

on the principal amount outstanding. 

 

 Financial Assets and Equity Instruments at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss 

(FVTPL) 

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are 

measured at FVTPL. 
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 Other Equity Investments  

All other equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes 

recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss, except for those equity investments 

for which the Company has elected to present the value changes in ‘Other 

Comprehensive Income’. 
 

 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily 

convertible into known amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk 

of change in value and having original maturities of three months or less from 

the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist 

of balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage. 

 

Investments in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures 

The Company does not have any subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures during 

the reporting period. 

 

De-recognition 

A financial asset is de-recognized only when 

 The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial 

asset or 

 Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but 

assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients. 

 

Where the Company has transferred an asset, it evaluates whether it has transferred 

substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, 

the financial asset is de-recognized.  

 

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially 

all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is de-

recognized if the company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the 

company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognized 

to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset. 

 

 Impairment of Financial Assets 

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL), 

simplified model approach for measurement and recognition of Impairment loss on 

Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset 

that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115. 

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the year is recognized 

as income / expense in the statement of Profit and Loss. 
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2.8 Financial Liabilities 

 Classification as Debt or Equity 

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the company are classified 

according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the 

definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. 

 

 Initial Recognition and Measurement 

Financial liabilities are recognized when the company becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at 

the amortized cost unless at initial recognition, they are classified as fair value 

through profit and loss. 

 

 Subsequent Measurement  

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective 

interest rate method. Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss 

are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognized in the statement 

of profit and loss. 

 

 Trade and Other Payables 

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the 

Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other 

payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 

months after the reporting year. They are recognized initially at their fair value 

and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. 

 

 Loans and Borrowings 

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently 

measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are 

recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as 

through the EIR amortization process.  

 

 De-recognition 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is 

discharged or cancelled or expires.  

 

  Impairment of Non-Financial Assets 

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an 

asset may be impaired.  If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing 

for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An 

asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating units (CGU) 

fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.  
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Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not 

generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or 

groups of assets. 

 

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the 

asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. 

 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their 

present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments 

of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair 

value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no 

such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.  

 

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are 

recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

 

A previously recognized impairment loss (except for goodwill) is reversed only if there 

has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable 

amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited to the 

carrying amount of the asset. 

 

2.9 Revenue Recognition  

 Sale of Services 

Revenue from rendering of services is recognized when the performance of agreed 

contractual task has been completed. 

 Interest income 

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized using effective interest rate 

method. 

 

2.10 CENVAT / Value Added Tax / Goods and Service Tax 

CENVAT / Value Added Tax / Goods and Service Tax benefit is accounted for by 

reducing the purchase cost of the materials/fixed assets/services. 

 

2.11 Leases 

 

As a Lessee 

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not 

transferred to the Company as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments 

made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are 

charged to statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the 

lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general 

inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases. 
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As a Lessor 

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognized in 

income on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured 

to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the expected 

inflationary cost increases. 

 

Transition 

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 and applied the standard to 

all lease contracts existing on April 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective method 

and has taken the cumulative adjustment to retained earnings, on the date of initial 

application. Consequently, the Company recorded the lease liability at the present 

value of the lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the 

right of use asset at its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the 

commencement date of the lease, but discounted at the incremental borrowing rate at 

the date of initial application. Comparatives as at and for the year ended March 31, 

2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted and therefore will continue to be 

reported under the accounting policies included as part of our Annual Report for year 

ended March 31, 2019. 

 

2.12 Foreign Currency Transactions 

The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupees which represents the 

currency of the economic environment in which it operates. 

 

Transactions in currencies other than the Company’s functional currency (foreign 

currencies) are recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the 

transactions. Monetary items denominated in foreign currency at the year end and not 

covered under forward exchange contracts are translated at the functional currency 

spot rate of exchange at the reporting date. 

 

Any income or expense on account of exchange difference between the date of 

transaction and on settlement or on translation is recognized in the profit and loss 

account as income or expense. 

 

Non monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are 

translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. 

Translation difference on such assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported 

as part of fair value gain or loss. 

 

2.13 Employee Benefits 

 Short term Employee Benefits:-  

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected 

to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the year in which the 

employees render the related service are recognized in respect of employees’ services 

up to the end of the reporting year and are measured at the amounts expected to be 
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paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee 

benefit obligations in the balance sheet. 

 

 Long-Term Employee Benefits 

Compensated expenses which are not expected to occur within twelve months after 

the end of year in which the employee renders the related services are recognized as a 

liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet 

date. 

 

Post-employment Obligations 

Defined Contribution Plans 

Provident fund benefit is a defined contribution plan under which the Company pays 

fixed contributions into funds established under the Employee’s Provident funds and 

Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952. The Company has no legal or constructive 

obligations to pay further contributions after payment of the fixed contribution. 

The contribution paid/payable under the schemes, is recognized during the period in 

which the employee renders the related service. 

 

Defined Benefit Plans 

Gratuity 

The Company provides for gratuity obligations through a defined benefit retirement 

plan (the ‘Gratuity Plan’) covering all employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump 

sum payment to vested employees at retirement or termination of employment based 

on the respective employee salary and years of employment with the Company. The 

Company provides for the Gratuity Plan based on actuarial valuations in accordance 

with Indian Accounting Standard 19 (revised), “Employee Benefits “. The present value 

of obligation under gratuity is determined based on actuarial valuation using Project 

Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to 

additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to 

build up the final obligation. 

 

Gratuity is recognized based on the present value of defined benefit obligation which 

is computed using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being 

carried out at the end of each annual reporting year. These are accounted either as 

current employee cost or included in cost of assets as permitted. 

 

Leave Encashment 

As per the Company’s policy, leave earned during the year do not carry forward, they 

lapse if the current period’s entitlement is not used in full and do not entitle 

employees to a cash payment for unused entitlement during service. 

 

Re-measurement of defined benefit plans in respect of post-employment are charged 

to the Other Comprehensive Income. 
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Termination benefits 

Termination benefits are recognized as an expense in the year in which they are 

incurred. 

 

2.14 Borrowing Costs 

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or 

production of qualifying asset are capitalized as part of cost of such asset. Other 

borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the year in which they are incurred. 

 

Borrowing costs consists of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in 

connection with the borrowing of funds. 

 

2.15 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or 

constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources 

embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable 

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

 

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration 

required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting year, taking into 

account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is 

measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying 

amount is the present value of those cash flows. 

 

Contingent assets are disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to 

accounts when an inflow of economic benefits is probable. 

 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to 

accounts, unless possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit is 

remote. 

 

2.16 Cash Flow Statement 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method. The cash flows from operating, 

investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated. 

 

2.17 Earnings Per Share 

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the 

weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted 

earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit after tax by the weighted 

average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and 

also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon 

conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. 
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2.18     Income Taxes 

The income tax expense or credit for the year is the tax payable on the current year’s 

taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in 

deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused 

tax losses, if any. 

 

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or 

substantively enacted at the end of the reporting year. Management periodically 

evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable 

tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate 

on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. 

 

Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) in relation to the year ended March 31, 2021 

In view of losses and unabsorbed depreciation, in the opinion of the Management 

considering the grounds of prudence, deferred tax assets is recognized to the extent 

of deferred tax liabilities and balance deferred tax assets have not been recognized in 

the books of account. 

 

3. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments 

The preparation of restated financial statements requires the use of accounting 

estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the actual results. This note provides 

an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgment or complexity, and 

of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and 

assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed 

information about each of these estimates and judgments is included in relevant 

notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line 

item in the financial statements. 

 

The areas involving critical estimates or judgments are: 

1. Useful life of tangible asset Note No. 2.5 

2. Useful life of intangible asset Note No. 2.6 

3. Impairment of financial assets refer Note No. 2.7 

4. Impairment of non – financial assets refer Note No. 2.8 

5. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets refer Note No. 2.15 

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated. They are based on historical 

experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a 

financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the 

circumstances. 
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 BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2021 
 

Sr. 
No. 

PARTICULARS Note 
No. 

As at March 
31, 2021 

As at March 
31, 2020 

 ASSETS    

(1) NON-CURRENT ASSETS    
 (a) Property, Plant and Equipment 4 8,01,17,376 9,52,48,573 

 (b) Capital Work-In-Progress  9,26,500 3,70,000 

 (c) Financial Assets  - - 
 (d) Others 5 1,19,99,160 1,19,36,110 

 TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS  9,30,43,036 10,75,54,683 
(2) CURRENT ASSETS    

 (a) Inventories 6 30,27,593 29,19,999 

 (b) Financial Assets    
 (i) Trade Receivable 7 9,03,16,226 4,09,08,778 

              (ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 8 43,79,593 1,61,19,719 
              (iii) Other Financal Assets 9 51,10,494 26,29,935 

 (c) Other Current Assets 10 78,95,444 11,63,429 
 TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS  11,07,29,351 6,37,41,859 

 TOTAL – ASSETS  20,37,72,387 17,12,96,543 

     
 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    

 EQUITY    
 (a) Equity Share Capital 11 32,10,00,000 32,10,00,000 

 (b) Other Equity 12 (23,02,77,171) (27,08,75,191) 

   9,07,22,829 5,01,24,809 
 LIABILITIES    

(1) NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES    
 (a) Financial Liabilities    

 (i) Borrowings 13 4,32,10,999 6,71,85,765 

 (b) Provisions 14 1,65,36,905 5,17,812 
 TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES  5,97,47,904 6,77,03,577 

(2) CURRENT LIABILITIES    
 (a) Financial Liabilities     

 (i) Borrowings 15 1,17,50,623 2,81,04,138 
 (ii) Trade Payables 16 2,16,31,167 1,90,44,997 

 (iii) Other Financial Liabilities 17 95,06,365 25,73,537 

 (b) Other Current Liabilities 18 1,03,44,094 36,95,852 
 (c) Provisions 19 69,405 49,633 

 TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES  5,33,01,654 5,34,68,157 
 TOTAL - EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  20,37,72,387 17,12,96,543 

 Corporate Information 1 - - 

 Significant Accounting Policies 2 - - 
 The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the 

Financial Statements 
3 to 
37 

- - 

As per our report of even date                        For and on behalf of the board of Directors of 
 
For M. B. Agrawal & Co.                                   Sd/-                                        Sd/-                                                         
Chartered Accountants                                   Pandoo Naig                           Rajnish Kumar Pandey       
Firm Reg. No. 100137W                                   Managing Director                 Director                                     
                                                                         DIN: 00158221                       DIN: 01096119             
Sd/-                                                                      
M. B. Agrawal               
Partner                                                              Sd/-                                        Sd/- 
Membership No. 009045                                  Amit Tyagi                             Sheetal Musale 
                                                                         Chief Financial Officer           Company Secretary 
                                                                                                                         Mem No.: A47551                     
Place: Mumbai 
Date: June 29, 2021                                           Place : Thane                                                                                        
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 STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS  FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2021 
 

PARTICULARS Note 
No. 

As at March 
31, 2021 

As at March 
31, 2020 

REVENUE    

Revenue from Operations 20 35,35,49,542 13,24,60,073 
Other Income 21 1,77,200 1,64,884 

TOTAL REVENUE  35,37,26,742 13,26,24,957 
EXPENSES    

Purchase of Stock-In-Trade  3,72,86,576 82,46,083 
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and  
stock-in-trade 

 (1,07,594) (10,54,141) 

Employee Benefits Expense 22 3,46,05,486 2,72,73,370 
Finance Costs 23 78,46,636 82,87,041 

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 4 1,41,60,099 1,27,63,023 
Other Expenses 24 20,34,15,843 7,67,24,976 

TOTAL EXPENSES  29,72,07,045 13,22,40,353 
Profit / (Loss) before Exceptional Items and tax  5,65,19,696 3,84,604 

Exceptional Items  - - 
Profit / (Loss) before Tax  5,65,19,696 3,84,604 

     
Tax expense    

(a) Current Tax 36 1,57,79,171 99,997 
(b) Deferred Tax Credit / (Charge)  - - 

(c) Earlier Year  - - 
Profit / (Loss) for the year  4,07,40,525 2,84,607 

Other Comprehensive income    
(a) (i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss   

      Re-measurement of defined benefit plans 
 (1,42,505) 

 
94,069 

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified    
       to profit or loss 

 - - 

(b)   (i) Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss  - - 

           (ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to   
              profit or loss 

 - - 

Total Other Comprehensive income for the year  (1,42,505) 94,069 

Total Comprehensive income / (loss) for the year  4,05,98,020 3,78,676 
Earnings per equity share    

       Basic  and Diluted  1.27 0.012 
Corporate Information 1 - - 

Significant Accounting Policies 2 - - 
The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Financial 
Statements 

3 to 37 - - 

As per our report of even date                        For and on behalf of the board of Directors of 
 
For M. B. Agrawal & Co.                                   Sd/-                                        Sd/-                                              
Chartered Accountants                                   Pandoo Naig                           Rajnish Kumar Pandey       
Firm Reg. No. 100137W                                   Managing Director                 Director                                     
                                                                         DIN: 00158221                       DIN: 01096119             
Sd/-                                                                      
M. B. Agrawal               
Partner                                                              Sd/-                                        Sd/- 
Membership No. 009045                                  Amit Tyagi                             Sheetal Musale 
                                                                         Chief Financial Officer           Company Secretary 
                                                                                                                        Mem No.: A47551                     
Place: Mumbai 
Date: June 29, 2021                                           Place : Thane                                                                            
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021 
 

PARTICULARS As at March 
31, 2021 

As at March 31, 
2020 

 CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:    

    

 Net Profit / (Loss) before tax and extraordinary items  5,65,19,696 3,84,604 

 Adjustments for:    
 Depreciation and Amortisation Expense  1,41,60,099 1,27,63,023 

 Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets  30,07,112 14,32,165 

 Interest Paid  78,46,636 82,87,041 
Operating Profit / (Loss) before working capital changes 8,15,33,543 2,28,66,834 

 Adjustments for:    

  (Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables   (4,94,07,448) (1,58,28,801) 
  (Increase) / Decrease in Other Financial Assets   (25,43,609) 44,05,930 

  (Increase) / Decrease in Inventories  (1,07,594) (10,54,141) 

  (Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Assets   (67,32,015) (2,44,158) 
  Increase / (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities   66,48,242 (14,89,117) 

  Increase / (Decrease) in Provisions   1,58,96,360 48,338 

  Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables   25,86,171 (44,44,045) 
  Increase / (Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities 69,32,828 (4,86,529) 

Cash generated from / used in operations 5,48,06,477 37,74,311 

Direct Taxes paid (net of refunds received) (1,57,79,171) (99,997) 
Extraordinary items  - 

Net cash from / (used in) operating activities                                                (A) 3,90,27,306 36,74,314 

    
 CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:    

 Purchase of Property, Plant and equipment  (77,73,908) (2,84,84,040) 

 Proceeds from Sale of fixed assets  51,81,394 52,77,285 

 Net cash (used in) / from investing activities                                                (B) (25,92,514) (2,32,06,755) 
    

 CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:    

 Proceeds from Borrowings  (4,03,28,281) 3,92,55,604 
 Interest Paid  (78,46,636) 82,87,041 

Net cash from financing activities                                                                  (C)  (4,81,74,917) 4,75,42,646 

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents                                              [A+B+C] (1,17,40,125) 1,14,36,122 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,61,19,719 46,83,597 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at th end of the year (Refer Note No. 9) 43,79,593 1,61,19,719 

Notes:  
1. Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in 
Ind AS - 7 specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

  

2. Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment includes movements of Capital 
Work-in-Progress (including Capital Advances) during the year. 

  

Corporate Information                                                                                     1           

Significant Accounting Policies                                                                        2           

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Financial                3 to 37 
Statements                                                                                                                  

   

As per our report of even date                        For and on behalf of the board of Directors of 
 
For M. B. Agrawal & Co.                                   Sd/-                                        Sd/-                                                         
Chartered Accountants                                   Pandoo Naig                           Rajnish Kumar Pandey       
Firm Reg. No. 100137W                                   Managing Director                 Director                                     
                                                                         DIN: 00158221                       DIN: 01096119             
Sd/-                                                                      
M. B. Agrawal               
Partner                                                              Sd/-                                        Sd/- 
Membership No. 009045                                  Amit Tyagi                             Sheetal Musale 
                                                                         Chief Financial Officer           Company Secretary 
                                                                                                                         Mem No.: A47551                     
Place: Mumbai 
Date: June 29, 2021                                           Place : Thane                                                                                        
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021 

 

A) Equity Share Capital 

 Particulars Amount 

As at March 31, 2019 32,10,00,000 

Changes in equity share capital                            -  

As at March 31, 2020 32,10,00,000 

Changes in equity share capital                            -  

As at March 31, 2021 32,10,00,000 

 

B) Other Equity 

Particulars 

Reserve and Surplus 

Total (Rs.) Securities Premium 

Reserve (Rs.) 
Retained Earnings 

As at March 31, 2019            7,50,000     (27,20,03,867)  (27,12,53,867) 

Profit for the year                            -                   2,84,607                 2,84,607  

Other comprehensive income for the year - Re-

measurement of defined benefit plans 
                           -                      94,069                    94,069  

As at March 31, 2020            7,50,000     (27,16,25,191)  (27,08,75,191) 

Profit for the year                            -             4,07,40,525           4,07,40,525  

Other comprehensive income for the year - Re-

measurement of defined benefit plans 
                           -                (1,42,505)             (1,42,505) 

As at March 31, 2021            7,50,000     (23,10,27,171)  (23,02,77,171) 
 

The Description of the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity is as follows: 

Securities Premium Reserve: 

Securities premium reserve is credited when shares are issued at premium. It is utilized in accordance with the 

provisions of the Act, to issue bonus shares, to provide for premium on redemption of shares or debentures, write-off 

equity related expenses like underwriting costs, etc 

Corporate Information                                                                                                                                                                  1 

Significant Accounting Policies                                                                                                                                                  2 

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements                                                   3 to 27 

As per our report of even date                        For and on behalf of the board of Directors of 
 
For M. B. Agrawal & Co.                                   Sd/-                                        Sd/-                                                                        
Chartered Accountants                                   Pandoo Naig                           Rajnish Kumar Pandey       
Firm Reg. No. 100137W                                   Managing Director                 Director                                     
                                                                         DIN: 00158221                       DIN: 01096119             
Sd/-                                                                      
M. B. Agrawal               
Partner                                                              Sd/-                                        Sd/- 
Membership No. 009045                                  Amit Tyagi                             Sheetal Musale 
                                                                         Chief Financial Officer           Company Secretary 
                                                                                                                         Mem No.: A47551                     
Place: Mumbai 
Date: June 29, 2021                                           Place : Thane                                                                                                                            
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NON - CURRENT ASSETS 
4.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

 

Particulars Leasehold 
Improvemen

ts 

Plant & 
Machinery 

Furniture & 
Fixtures 

Vehicles Office 
Equipment 

Computers & 
Printers 

Air 
Conditione

rs 

WIP OT 
Complex 

Ventilator Total 

Gross carrying 
value as at April 
01, 2019 

1,64,40,970 7,53,49,089 41,38,289 55,12,050 12,00,064 8,88,578 73,544 23,69,939 - 10,59,72,523 

Additions - 2,27,08,608 1,03,029 59,71,089 69,826 1,24,198 - - - 2,89,76,750 

Deletions - 38,20,560 37,741 29,75,970 1,49,354 34,011 - - - 70,17,636 

Gross carrying 
value as at March 
31, 2020 

1,64,40,970 9,42,37,137 42,03,577 85,07,169 11,20,536 9,78,765 73,544 23,69,939 - 12,79,31,636 

Additions - 14,93,600 78,700 27,44,208 4,94,750 6,34,610 1,35,700 - 16,35,840 72,17,408 

Deletions - 74,66,914 2,40,711 - - - - - - 77,07,625 

Gross carrying 
value as at March 
31, 2021 

1,64,40,970 8,82,63,823 40,41,566 1,12,51,377 16,15,286 16,13,375 2,09,244 23,69,939 16,35,840 12,74,41,420 

Accumulated 
depreciation as at 
April 01, 2019 

18,33,738 1,55,92,620 5,55,256 11,87,046 2,02,460 4,34,119 44,443 70,358 - 1,99,20,040 

Depreciation for 
the year 

32,88,196 74,08,343 4,97,348 8,56,210 2,25,201 1,94,405 11,888 2,81,432 - 1,27,63,023 

Accumulated 
depreciation on 
deletion 

- - - - - - - - - - 

Accumulated 
depreciation as at 
March 31, 2020 

51,21,934 2,30,00,963 10,52,604 20,43,256 4,27,661 6,28,524 56,331 3,51,790 - 3,26,83,063 

Depreciation for 
the year 

32,88,196 84,09,418 4,94,918 9,64,683 2,39,154 3,11,762 24,129 2,81,432 1,46,407 1,41,60,099 

Accumulated 
depreciation on 
deletion 

- 4,53,850 27,031 - - - - - - 4,80,881 

Accumulated 
depreciation as at 
March 31, 2021 

84,10,130 3,18,64,231 15,74,553 30,07,939 6,66,815 9,40,286 80,460 6,33,222 1,46,407 4,73,24,043 

Carrying Value as 
at March 31, 2020 

1,13,19,036 7,12,36,174 31,50,973 64,63,913 6,92,875 3,50,241 17,213 20,18,149 - 9,52,48,573 

Carrying Value as 
at March 31, 2021 

80,30,840 5,63,99,589 24,67,013 82,43,438 9,48,473 6,73,090 1,28,784 17,36,717 14,89,433 8,01,17,376 

 

PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 

5.    FINANCIAL ASSTES – OTHERS   

       Unsecured - - 
       Deposits 1,19,36,110 1,19,36,110 

TOTAL 1,19,36,110 1,19,36,110 

 

PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 

6.    INVENTORIES   

       Medicines 30,27,593 29,19,999 

TOTAL 30,27,593 29,19,999 
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PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 

7.    TRADE RECEIVABLE     
    Unsecured     
    Outstanding for a period exceeding six   
    months     

    Considered Good 6,75,50,000 3,00,10,000 

   6,75,50,000 3,00,10,000 
    Outstanding for a period not exceeding six  
    months   

    Considered Good  2,27,66,226 1,08,98,778 
 2,27,66,226 1,08,98,778 
   

  Less: Provision for doubtful debts - - 
                            TOTAL 9,03,16,226 4,09,08,778 

 

PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 

8.   CASH AND CASH EQUIVALANTS   

      Balances with Banks   

   In Current Accounts 33,00,092             1,30,64,626  

   Cash on hand 10,79,501                30,55,093  

TOTAL 43,79,593          1,61,19,719  

 

PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 

9.   OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS   

      Advance to Staff 23,447 3,000    

      Advance to Others 50,87,047 26,26,935 
TOTAL 51,10,494 26,29,935 

 

PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 

10.  OTHER CURRENT ASSETS   

    FD Interest Receivable 82,960                      56,337  

    Prepaid Expenses 6,13,108                   1,45,977  

    TDS Receivables 71,99,376                   9,61,115  

TOTAL 78,95,444              11,63,429  
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PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 

11. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL   

Authorised   

   33,500,000 (Previous year 33,500,000)   

   Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 

33,50,00,000 33,50,00,000 

TOTAL 33,50,00,000 33,50,00,000 

   
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up   

Equity Shares   
  32,100,000 (Previous year 32,100,000)     

  Equity Share of  Rs. 10/- each fully paid up 

32,10,00,000 32,10,00,000 

TOTAL 32,10,00,000 32,10,00,000 

 

 

PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 

11. 1  EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 

 Numbers Rs Numbers Rs 

Reconciliation of Shares     

At the beginning of the year 3,21,00,000 32,10,00,000 3,21,00,000 32,10,00,000 

Issued during the year - - - - 

Outstanding at the end of the 

year 

3,21,00,000 32,10,00,000 3,21,00,000 32,10,00,000 

 

 

11. 2  Details of Shareholders 

holding more than 5% shares in 

the Company 

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 

 Numbers % Numbers % 

a. Gautam Deshpande 1,64,47,400 51.24% 1,64,47,400 51.24% 

b. Shree Balaji Enterprises 

through Partner Nanda D Bangar 

68,64,296 21.38% 68,64,296 21.38% 

c. Pramod Mangilal Dave 22,92,999 7.14% 38,82,700 12.10% 
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11.3  Rights, Preferences and Restrictions attaching to each class of shares 

           Equity Shares having a face value of Rs. 10 

a. As to Dividend: -  

The Shareholders are entitled to receive dividend in proportion to the amount of paid up 

equity shares held by them. The Company has not declared any dividend during the year. 

b. As to Repayment of Capital: - 

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares are entitled to 

receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential 

amounts. The distribution will be in proportion of the number of shares held by the 

shareholders. 

c. As to Voting: - 

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a face value 

of Rs. 10. Each holder of the equity share is entitled to one vote per share. 

 

PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 

12. OTHER EQUITY   

    

Securities Premium Reserve                          (A) 7,50,000 7,50,000 

     

Deficit in the Statement of Profit and Loss    

As per last Balance Sheet (27,16,25,191)           (27,20,03,867) 

Add : - Profit for the year 4,07,40,525 2,84,607 

Add : - Other Comprehensive Income for the    

year - Remeasurement of Defined benefit plans 

(1,42,505) 94,069 

Balance at the end of the year                          (B) (23,02,77,171) (27,16,25,191) 

TOTAL (A) + (B) (23,02,77,171)        (27,08,75,191) 

 

PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 

13. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES – BORROWINGS   

Secured   

Term Loans   

From Others - Vehicle Loan 49,61,813 47,72,188 

Secured by way of hypothecation of Vehicle   

Term of Repayment and Maturity   

Initial Term: 7 years and Rate of Interest: 11% p.a.   

31.03.2022-875072   

31.03.2023-777978   

31.03.2024-753001   

31.03.2025-824456   

31.03.2026-902691   

05.02.2027-817341   

Unsecured   

    From Related Party 2,01,74,771 4,89,55,081 

    From Others 1,80,74,415 1,34,58,496 
TOTAL 4,32,10,999 6,71,85,765 



 

                                                                             

27th Annual Report 2020-21 Page 113 

 

PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 

14. NON - CURRENT PROVISIONS   

Provision for Gratuity 7,66,251 4,17,815 

Provision for Income Tax 1,57,70,654 99,997 

TOTAL 1,65,36,905 5,17,812 

 

PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 

CURRENT LIABILITIES   
15. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS   

Secured   

Term Loans    

    From Bank - - 

    Secured by way of hypothecation of Vehicle 16,62,151 - 

    Secured by way of hypothecation of Machine 50,88,472 2,05,26,367 

Unsecured   

From Others 50,00,000 75,77,771 

TOTAL (A) + (B) 1,17,50,623 2,81,04,138 

 

PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 

16.   TRADE PAYABLES   

*Due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 1,19,101 2,99,816 

Due to creditors other than Micro Enterprises 
and Small Enterprises 

2,15,12,066 1,87,45,181 

*(i) The Principal amount remaining unpaid to 
supplier as at the end of the accounting year 

- - 

(ii) The interest due thereon remaining unpaid, 
to supplier as at the end of accounting year 

- - 

(iii) The amount of interest paid in terms of 
section 16, along with the amounts of the 
payment made to the supplier beyond 
appointed day during the year 

- - 

(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for 
the period of delay in making payment (which 
have been paid but beyond the appointed day 
during the year) but without adding interest 
specified under this Act. 

- - 

(v) The amount of Interest accrued during the 
year and remaining unpaid at the end of year 

- - 

(vi)  The amount of further interest remaining 
due and payable even in the succeeding years, 
until such date when the interest due as above 
are actually paid to the small enterprises, for 
the purpose of disallowance as a deductible 
expenditure. 

- - 

 TOTAL  2,16,31,167 1,90,44,997 
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PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 

17. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES   

   Salary Payable 29,65,656 18,27,322 

   Other Payable 5,94,779 5,94,344 

   Provision For Expenses 59,45,930 1,51,871 
TOTAL 95,06,365 25,73,537 

 

 

PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 

18.  OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES   

    Statutory Dues 1,02,40,119 36,03,872 

    Others 1,03,974 91,980 
TOTAL 1,03,44,094 36,95,852 

 

 

PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 

19.  CURRENT PROVISIONS   

    Provision for Gratuity 69,405 49,633 

TOTAL 69,405 49,633 

 

 

 

PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 

20. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS     

Sale of Services     

       Healthcare Services 35,35,49,542              13,24,60,073  

TOTAL 35,35,49,542 13,24,60,073 

 

 

PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 

21. OTHER INCOME   

Interest on Fixed Deposit 26,623 25,000 

Rental Income - 85,000 

Miscellaneous Income 1,50,577 54,884 

TOTAL 1,77,200 1,64,884 

 

 

PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 

22. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE   

Salary, Wages and Other Benefits 3,39,87,661 2,62,70,413 

Contribution to Provident Fund 4,61,544 7,18,179 

Staff Welfare Expenses 1,56,281 2,84,778 

TOTAL 3,46,05,486 2,72,73,370 

 

 



 

                                                                             

27th Annual Report 2020-21 Page 115 

 

 

PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 

23. FINANCE COSTS     

   Interest Expenses 78,46,636 82,87,041 

TOTAL 78,46,636 82,87,041 

 

 

PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 

24. OTHER EXPENSES   

Advertisement Expenses 5,48,033 7,02,131 
Bad Debts 6,25,000 - 

Bank Charges 4,66,791 1,58,418 
Brokerage Expenses 1,33,000 39,000 
Business Promotion 9,28,465 8,36,207 

Computer Expenses 4,94,483 6,69,305 
Communication Expenses 4,56,843 1,54,876 
Directors Sitting Fees 1,50,000 1,65,000 

Hospital Expenses 3,30,57,215 36,82,357 
Diagnostic Expenses 6,07,424 7,68,976 
Hospital Consumable 49,30,427 31,68,226 

Medical Oxygen Expenses 64,99,088 9,25,837 
Pathology Charges 43,00,263 25,68,832 
Housekeeping Expenses 76,98,835 25,72,559 
Canteen Expenses 57,74,851 15,81,226 

Insurance Charges 1,18,891 2,42,699 
Membership & Subscription 6,12,960 5,85,738 
Printing and Stationery 11,15,817 14,88,865 

Repairs to Building 4,28,825 8,10,265 
Repairs to Machine 2,94,235 3,40,685 
Repairs to Others 17,74,430 3,28,583 

Office Rent 35,65,405 47,03,292 
Office Expenses 3,35,72,781 1,29,00,657 
Power & Fuel 52,53,905 51,27,404 

Postage & Stamp Paper 3,32,277 5,98,160 
Professional Fees 5,69,19,728 2,43,55,147 
Security Charges 8,43,933 11,10,875 

Refund to Patients 2,18,84,198 2,97,462 
Water Charges 27,74,477 7,87,778 
Rates and Taxes 82,151 1,57,143 
Remuneration to Auditors (Refer Notes No.31) 1,50,000 1,50,000 

Travelling and Conveyance 16,30,220 15,08,637 
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 30,07,112 14,32,165 
Miscellaneous Expenses 23,83,780 18,06,470 

TOTAL 20,34,15,843 7,67,24,976 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021 

25. Disclosure pursuant to Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 19 “Employee 

Benefits” 

The following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amount recognized 

in the financial statements as at March 31, 2021. 

 

Particulars 
  

As at As at 

31-Mar-2021 31-Mar-2020 

  Rs Rs 

Change in present value of obligations     

Obligations at beginning of the year 4,67,448 3,16,110  

Interest Cost 29,169 22,349 

Service Cost 1,96,534 2,23,058  

Past Service Cost -  - 

Benefits Paid -  -  

Actuarial (gains) / losses on obligations due to change in 
financial assumptions 

1,02,149 20,805 

Actuarial (gains) / losses on obligations due to 
experience 

40,356 (1,14,874) 

Obligations at the end of the year 8,35,636 4,67,448  

Expenses recognized in the Statement of P&L A/c.   
 

Current Service Cost 1,96,534 2,23,058  

Net Interest Cost 29,169 
    

22,349  

Actuarial (Gain) / Losses 1,42,505  (94,069) 

Past service Cost (Non Vested Benefits) -  -  

Past service Cost (Vested Benefits) -  -  

Net Gratuity Cost 3,68,208 1,51,338 

Amount recognized in the Balance Sheet     

Present Value Obligation at the end of the period 8,35,636 4,67,448  

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the period  Nil   Nil  

Funded Status – (Surplus / (Deficit)) 8,35,636 4,67,448  

Unrecognized Past Service Cost at the end of the period  Nil   Nil  

Net (Liability) / Asset recognized in the Balance Sheet 8,35,636 4,67,448  

Assumptions     

Mortality Table Indian Assured lives 
Mortality      (2006 – 08)   

Discount Rate  6.06% 6.24% 

Rate of Escalation in salary 7.00% 5.00% 

Attrition Rate 2.00% 2.00% 
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26. Disclosures pursuant to Indian Accounting Standard 108 “Operating Segments” 

The Company operates in a single business segment viz. Healthcare Services; 

accordingly there is no reportable business or geographical segments as prescribed 

Under Indian Accounting Standard 108 “Operating Segments”. 
 

 

27. Disclosure of related parties/related party transactions pursuant to Indian 

Accounting Standard 24 “Related Party Disclosures” 

 

I. List of Related Parties 

List of Related Parties where 
control exists - Shareholders in 
the Company 

Dr. Gautam Deshpande – (Retired w.e.f. Jan 31, 2021) 
Dr. Sowmya Deshpande – (Resigned w.e.f. Apr 26, 2021) 

Key Management Personnel Dr. Gautam Deshpande - Managing Director – (Retired 
w.e.f. Jan 31, 2021) 

Mr. Pandoo Naig - Managing Director - (Appointed w.e.f. 
Apr 26, 2021) 

Dr. Sowmya Deshpande - Whole Time Director - (Resigned 
w.e.f. Apr 26, 2021) 

Mr. Amit Tyagi - Chief Financial Officer 

Ms. Sheetal Musale - Company Secretary (w.e.f. Aug 31, 
2020) 

Companies in which Relative 
of Key Management Personnel 
having significant influence 

Onelife Capital Advisors Limited 
Dealmoney Securities Private Limited 
 

 

II Transactions and amount outstanding with related parties                

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars Subsidiaries 
Key 

Management 
Personnel 

Relative of 
Key 

Management 
Personnel 

Companies 
in which 

Relative of 
Key 

Management 
Personnel 

Having 
Significant 
Influence 

I Interest Payable 

Onelife Capital Advisors 
Limited 

Nil Nil Nil 39,87,690 

(Nil) (Nil) (Nil) (58,45,542) 

II 

Revenue recognized - 
 Healthcare Services 

    

Dealmoney Securities 
Private Limited 

Nil Nil Nil Nil 

(Nil) (Nil) (Nil) (55,00,000) 

III Loan Taken 

Gautam Deshpande 
Nil 47,15,802 Nil Nil 

(Nil) (42,85,873) (Nil) (Nil) 
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Sr. 
No. 

Particulars Subsidiaries 
Key 

Management 
Personnel 

Relative of 
Key 

Management 
Personnel 

Companies 
in which 

Relative of 
Key 

Management 
Personnel 

Having 
Significant 
Influence 

Onelife Capital Advisors 
Limited 

Nil Nil Nil 45,00,000 

(Nil) (Nil) (Nil) (1,29,40,000) 

IV Loan Repaid 

Gautam Deshpande 
Nil 47,15,802 Nil Nil 

(Nil) (63,27,244) (Nil) (Nil) 

Onelife Capital Advisors 
Limited 

Nil Nil Nil 3,22,68,000 

(Nil) (Nil) (Nil) (1,65,36,158) 

V Remuneration/Professional fees to Key Management Personnel 

Gautam Deshpande 
Nil 34,50,000 Nil Nil 

(Nil) (12,00,000) (Nil) (Nil) 

Sowmya Deshpande 
Nil 28,50,000 Nil Nil 

(Nil) (14,00,000) (Nil) (Nil) 

Amit Tyagi 
Nil 5,95,000 Nil Nil 

(Nil) (5,89,000) (Nil) (Nil) 

Sheetal Musale 
Nil 3,04,193 Nil Nil 

(Nil) (Nil) (Nil) (Nil) 

Anushree Tekriwal 
Nil Nil Nil Nil 

(Nil) (5,07,795) (Nil) (Nil) 

Outstanding as at March 31, 2021 
I Gautam Deshpande 

(Loan Outstanding) 
Nil Nil Nil Nil 

(Nil) (Nil) (Nil) (Nil) 

II Onelife Capital Advisors 
Limited (Loan 
Outstanding) 

Nil Nil Nil 2,51,74,771 

(Nil) (Nil) (Nil) (4,89,55,081) 

 

 Figures in the bracket indicate previous year’s figures. 

 

28. Disclosures pursuant to Indian Accounting Standard 17 “Leases” 

 

a Operating Lease (Expenditure) 

As at the year end, the Company has following non-cancellable lease arrangement 

in respect of leased premises: - 

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 

Lease rentals debited to Statement of Profit 

and Loss 

35,65,405 47,03,292 
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b the total of future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating 

leases for each of the following periods 

 

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 

Not later than one year 36,05,605 30,69,333 

Later than one year and not later than five 

years 

8,52,900 8,83,050 

Later than five years Nil Nil 

 

Since the Company does not have any long term lease and the entire lease are short 

term. 

 

29. Basic and diluted earnings per share [EPS] computed in accordance with Indian 

Accounting Standard 33 “Earnings per Share” 
                                                                                                Rs 

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 

Net Profit / (Loss) after tax as per Statement of 

Profit and Loss  
4,05,98,020 3,78,676 

Number of Equity Shares outstanding  3,21,00,000 321,00,000 

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares  3,21,00,000 321,00,000 

Nominal value of equity shares 10 10 

Basic and Diluted Earnings per share  1.27 0.01 

 

30. Disclosure required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 

Act, 2006 (the Act) 

There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise to whom the Company owes dues 

which were outstanding as the balance sheet date. The above information regarding 

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise has been determined to the extent such parties 

have been identified on the basis of the information available with the Company. This 

has been relied upon by the Auditors. 

 

31. Remuneration to Auditors        

Rs 

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 

Statutory Audit  1,50,000 1,50,000 

Total 1,50,000 1,50,000 

 

32. Details of Loans given, covered u/s 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

disclosure pursuant to clause 34 of the (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

There was no such transaction during the year.  
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33. Current Tax and Deferred Tax 

a) Income Tax Expense recognized in statement of profit and loss 
 

 
(Rs. In Lakhs)   

Particulars Year Ended 

March 31, 2021 

Year Ended 

March 31, 2020 

Current Tax   

Current Income Tax Charge 157.79 1.00 

Adjustments in respect of prior years - - 

Total 157.79 1.00 

 

Deferred Tax credit / charge   

In respect of current year - - 

Total - - 

Total tax expense recognized in Statement of Profit 

and Loss 

157.79 1.00 

 

b) Income Tax recognized in Other Comprehensive Income 

  
 (Rs. In Lakhs)  

Particulars Year Ended March 

31, 2021 

Year Ended 

March 31, 2020 

Deferred Tax (Liabilities) / Assets   

Re-measurement of Defined Benefit Obligations - - 

Total - - 
 

34. Financial Instruments 

34.1 Financial Assets and Liabilities                                                                   Rs 

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 

FVTPL FVTOCI Amortized 

Cost 

FVTPL FVTOCI Amortized 

Cost 

Financial Assets       

Non Current Assets-

Others 

- - 1,19,99,160 - - 1,19,36,110 

Trade receivable - - 9,03,16,226 - - 4,09,08,778 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 43,79,593 - - 1,61,19,719 

Other financial assets - - 51,10,494 - - 26,29,935 

Total Financial Assets - - 11,18,05,473 - - 7,15,94,542 

Financial Liabilities       

Non Current Liabilities - 

Borrowings 

- - 4,32,10,999 - - 6,71,85,765 

Current - Borrowings - - 1,17,50,623 - - 2,81,04,138 

Trade Payables - - 2,16,31,167 - - 1,90,44,997 

Other Financial Liabilities - - 95,06,365 - - 25,73,537 

Total Financial Liabilities - - 8,60,99,154 - - 11,69,08,437 
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34.2 Fair Value measurement 

Fair Value Hierarchy and valuation technique used to determine fair value: 

The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to 

measure fair value that are either observable or unobservable and are categorized 

into Level1, Level 2 and Level 3 inputs. 

 

Year Ending March 31, 2021  

  Rs 

Assets and liabilities which are measured at 
Amortized Cost for which fair value are 
disclosed at 31-03-2021 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

Financial Assets    

Non Current Assets - Others - 1,19,99,160 - 

Trade Receivable - 9,03,16,226 - 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - 43,79,593 - 

Other Financial Assets - 51,10,494 - 

Total Financial Assets - 11,18,05,473 - 

Financial Liabilities    

Non Current Liabilities - Borrowings - 4,32,10,999 - 

Current – Borrowings - 1,17,50,623 - 

Trade Payables - 2,16,31,167 - 

Other Financial Liabilities - 95,06,365 - 

Total Financial Liabilities - 8,60,99,154 - 

    

 
Year Ending March 31, 2020 

   

Assets and liabilities which are measured at 
Amortized Cost for which fair value are 
disclosed at 31-03-2020 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

Financial Assets    

Non CurrentAssests– Others - 1,19,36,110 - 

Trade Receivable - 4,09,08,778 - 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - 1,61,19,719 - 

Other Financial Assets - 26,29,935 - 

Total Financial Assets - 7,15,94,542 - 

Financial Liabilities    

Non Current Liabilities - Borrowings - 6,71,85,765 - 

Current – Borrowings - 2,81,04,138 - 

Trade Payables - 1,90,44,997 - 

Other Financial Liabilities - 25,73,537 - 

Total Financial Liabilities - 11,69,08,437 - 

    

 

34.3 Financial risk management objectives and policies 

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade 

and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the 

Company’s operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The 
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Company’s principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, and cash 

and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations. 

 

The Company’s business activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, namely 

liquidity risk, market risks and credit risk. The Company's senior management has 

the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's 

risk management framework. The top management is responsible for developing 

and monitoring the Company's risk management policies. The Company's risk 

management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the 

Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and 

adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly 

to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. 

 

       34.3.1 Management of Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will face in meeting its obligations 

associated with its financial liabilities. The Company’s approach to managing 

liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due 

without incurring unacceptable losses. In doing this, management considers both 

normal and stressed conditions. The following table shows the maturity analysis of 

the Company's financial liabilities based on contractually agreed undiscounted cash 

flows as at the Balance Sheet date. 

 

Particulars Carrying 

amount 

Less than 

12 months 

More than 

12 months 

Total 

As at March 31, 2021     

Non - Current Borrowings 4,32,10,999 - 4,32,10,999 4,32,10,999 

Current – Borrowings 1,17,50,623 1,17,50,623 - 1,17,50,623 

Trade Payable 2,16,31,167 2,16,31,167 - 2,16,31,167 

Other Financial Liabilities 95,06,365 95,06,365 - 95,06,365 

     

As at March 31, 2020     

Non - Current Borrowings 6,71,85,765 - 6,71,85,765 6,71,85,765 

Current - Borrowings 2,81,04,138 2,81,04,138 - 2,81,04,138 

Trade Payable 1,90,44,997 1,90,44,997 - 1,90,44,997 

Other Financial Liabilities 25,73,537 25,73,537 - 25,73,537 

 

       34.3.2 Market Risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument 

will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types 

of risk interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk. 

Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, 

FVTOCI investments. 
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The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 

2021 and March 31, 2020. 

 

Potential impact of risk 
Management 

Policy 
Sensitivity to risk 

1. Price Risk 
  

The company is not 
exposed to any specific 
price risk.  

Not Applicable Not Applicable 

2. Interest Rate Risk 
  

Interest rate risk is the 
risk that the fair value or 
future cash flows of a 
financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of 
changes in market 
interest rates. The 
Company’s exposure to 
the risk of changes in 
market interest rates 
relates primarily to the 
Group’s long-term debt 
obligations with floating 
interest rates. 

In order to manage it 
interest rate risk The 
Company diversifies its 
portfolio in accordance 
with the limits set by 
the risk management 
policies. 

As an estimation of the approximate 
impact of the interest rate risk, with 
respect to financial instruments, the 
Group has calculated the impact of a 
0.25% change in interest rates. A 
0.25% decrease in interest rates would 
have led to approximately an 
additional ` 0.20 lakhs gain for year 
ended March 31, 2021 (`0.21 lakhs 
gain for year ended March 31 2020) in 
Interest expenses. A 0.25% increase in 
interest rates would have led to an 
equal but opposite effect. 

 

 

34.3.3 Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that counter party will not meet its obligations under a 

financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The company is 

exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and 

from the deposits with banks and financial institutions and other financial 

instruments. 

 

Trade Receivables 

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company 

established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk 

management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an extensive credit 

rating scorecard and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this 

assessment. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored at March 31, 

2021. 

 

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis 

for major clients. In addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into 

homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. The calculation is 

based on exchange losses historical data. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the 

reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets. The Company 
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does not hold collateral as security. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk 

with respect to trade receivables a slow, as its customers are located in several 

jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely independent markets. 

 

 

35. Capital management 

 

Capital includes issued equity capital and share premium and all other equity 

reserves attributable to the equity holders. The primary objective of the Company’s 

capital management is to maximize the shareholder value. 

                                                                                                                                Rs 

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 

Non - Current Borrowings 4,32,10,999 6,71,85,765 

Current – Borrowings 1,17,50,623 2,81,04,138 

Trade Payable 2,16,31,167 1,90,44,997 

Other Financial Liabilities 95,06,365 25,73,537 

Less: Cash and Cash equivalents 43,79,593 1,61,19,719 

Net Debt (A) 8,17,19,561 10,07,88,718 

Total Equity 9,07,22,829 5,01,24,809 

Total Capital (B) 9,07,22,829 5,01,24,809 

Capital and Net Debt C = (A) + (B) 17,24,42,390 15,09,13,527 

Gearing Ratio (A) / (C) 47.39% 66.79% 

 

 

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of 

changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. The 

Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total 

capital plus net debt. The Company includes with in net debt, interest bearing loans 

and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents, excluding 

discontinued operations. The company monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is 

total debt divided by total capital plus debt. 

 

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, 

amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to 

the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. 

Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately 

call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of 

any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current year. 

 

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital 

during the years ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020. 
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36. Tax Reconciliation        Rs. In Lakhs 

Particulars March 31, 

2021 

March 31, 

2020 

Net profit as per Statement of Profit and Loss Account (before 

tax) 

565.20 3.85 

Corporate Tax Rate as per Income tax Act, 1961 - - 

Tax on Accounting Profit 157.79 1.00 

Tax difference on account of:   

Depreciation allowed as per Income tax Act, 1961 (4.90) (0.17) 

Ind AS Impact - Re-measurement of defined benefit obligation - - 

Expenses not allowable under the Income tax Act, 1961 - - 

Impact of Carry forward of losses and unabsorbed 

depreciation to the extent of available income 

- - 

Deferred tax assets not recognized considering the grounds of 

prudence 

4.90 0.17 

Total effect  of tax adjustments - - 

Tax expense recognized during the year 157.79 1.00 

 

37. The Company has regrouped / reclassified the previous year figures to conform to the 

current year’s reclassification / presentation. 

 

As per our report of even date 

 For and on behalf of the board of Directors of 

 Scandent Imaging Limited 

For M. B. Agrawal & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg. No.100137W   Sd/-                                   Sd/- 

                                                Pandoo Naig Rajnish Kumar Pandey 

 Managing Director Director 

Sd/- DIN No. 00158221 DIN No. 01096119 

M. B. Agrawal 

Partner 

Membership No. 009045                                            

 

       Sd/-                                   Sd/- 

 Sheetal Musale Amit Tyagi 

 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer 

 Mem. No. A47551 
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